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Vision

To be a world-class electro-acoustic group.

— Mission

Through continuous improvements in quality®
and technology® and raising the satisfaction
level of employees, customers, suppliers and
investors, we enable sustainable growth of
the group.

Unity and Co-operation; endeavoring joint
efforts and wisdom for achieving our goals.

Commitment and Mutual Benefits;
making continuous and steady development.

Innovation and Progress;
sharing the outstanding achievements.

From Society and for Society;
fulfilling social obligations.

Remark @ Quality - Product, Service and Management; and
Remark @ Technology - Development and Production
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Financial Highlights
$F 755 ik

For the year ended 31 March H#Z2=A=1+—HItEE 2008 2007 Changef1t
Operating Results RE%E
Gross margin (%) EFIE %) 22.6% 227%  -01%pts BAH
Operating margin (%) ZIEFHE (%) 10.5% 126%  -21%pts ANH
Net margin (%) 7% (%) 8.6% 95%  -0.9%npts BNY
Return on equity holders (%) BEEHE %) 20.7% 29.7%  -9.0% pts AN
Financial Position B#MR
Total assets (HK$'000) #EE (TR 1,016,757 936,586 9%
Cash and bank deposits (HK$'000) ~ H& RETHEHR (FAT) 325,593 160,442 108%
Total debt (HK$'000) #EE (TET) 33,601 49,194 -32%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) bR (TAT) 668,502 536,130 25%
Financial Ratio Bt
Current ratio (Times) MELLE (f5) 25 1.9 32%
Quick ratio (Times) REILE (fF) 2.0 13 54%
Gearing ratio (%) BRELE (%) 5.0% 92%  -42%pts BNY
Turnover Ratio BElL%
Inventory turnover (days) HFERE#E (A) 56 62 -10%
Debtors turnover (days) JEEREE (/) 52 51 2%
Creditors turnover (days) [EfTERESE (B) 48 54 -11%
Operating cycle (days) RS (B) 60 59 2%
Dividends per Share (HK cents)  SRKRE (Bl) 15.0 12.0 25%
Interim ] 3.0 30 0%
Final R 5.0 50 0%
Special Al 7.0 40 75%

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited



Year Ended 31 March EZ=F=+—-HLLEE

Revenue

KA

2008 1,616,485

2007 1,678,402

2006 1,089,209

931,951

2005

2004 602,149

Years
Fin

Profit Attributable to The Company’s Equity Holders
ERAREFBARGER

2008 138,226

2007 | . 159,457
2006 | ., %

2005| R, 60209

2004 R, 21835

Years

FH
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Gross Profit
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Financial Summary

A X5t

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBI - ABEEFTE)

The following is a summary of the consolidated balance sheets
and consolidated income statement of Fujikon Industrial

UTRELTSEXZERARAR(ARA])
REMBAR(SH AEE ) ZHRAEER

Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together BRRGAERERIIRE
the “Group”):
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS REEERER
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$000F T $000F T $'000F T $000F T $000F 7T
(As restated)
(E7))
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER S 214,607 224,665 204,116 168,514 181,460
Investment properties RAME 5,220 4,360 4,180 - -
Leasehold land and land use rights ~ FE+i kK 21,527 21,198 21,156 22,046 -
TiERE
Non-current deposits EnBEE 14,627 - - - -
Interests in jointly controlled entities M EREHIEE 2
3 - - - 354 -
Long-term investments RHRE - - - 23,858 35,539
Available-for-sale financial assets RN ENKEE - 3,963 7215 - -
Deferred tax assets ELHERE 17 186 17 1,555 -
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 255,998 254,372 236,684 216,327 216,999
Current assets RBEE
Inventories #E 163,838 221,205 211,399 104,299 88,479
Trade recelvables JERER 196,512 258,868 206,381 144,996 105,194
Other receivables it EYGIR 29,447 34,461 24,270 9,571 10,055
Derivative financial instruments fTEemTA - - 495 - -
Other financial assets at BATEABRE
fair value through profit or loss MEMIBEEE 45,369 7,238 9,370 - -
Pledged bank deposits BREARITER - 2,132 - - 142
Cash and bank deposits Be RFITER 325,593 158,310 65,354 93,821 73,587
Total current assets RBEELE 760,759 682,214 517,269 352,687 277,457
Current liabilities REBE
Trade payables ERER (139,936) (185,280) (193,165) (105,610) (85,348)
Accruals and other payables JERH R E B FRE (106,406) (99,803) (67,840) (51,740) (36,746)
Current income tax liabilities EHFENAR (22,979) (30,776) (10,148) (10,972) (1,064)
Derivative financial instruments fTESBTA (4,041) (1,055) - - -
Bank borrowings RITER (30,416) (43,279) (51,053) (38,185) (49,985)
Total current liabilities nEAELE (308,778) (360,193) (322,206) (206,507) (173,143)
Net current assets REEEFE 456,981 322,021 195,063 146,180 104,314
Total assets less current liabilities AEERTEEE 712,979 576,393 431,747 362,507 321,313

4 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited



Financial Summary

W5 e

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHBI - ABEFTE)

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$000F ¢ $000F $000F T $000F T $000F T
(As restated)

(E51)
Non-current liabilities Fhaas
Bank borrowings BITER (3,185) (5,915) (10,245) (3,733) (2,460)
Deferred tax liabilities ERHEARE (1,135) (1,021) (1,270) (2,226) (3,759)
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEAE (4,320) (6,936) (11,515) (5,959) (6,219)
Net assets BERE 708,659 569,457 420,232 356,548 315,094
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable HEAQAREZFEA
to the Company’s equity holders ~ ZBRAR 1
Share capital e 38,119 37,732 37,502 36,389 36,889
Other reserves Hibf#E 128,334 74,209 67,847 57,681 74210
Retained earnings REEF
- Proposed dividends - Baks 39,918 34,121 18,786 27,830 16,600
- Others - Eft 462,131 390,068 276,034 220,813 174,916
668,502 536,130 400,169 343,213 302,615
Minority interests DERRES 40,157 33,327 20,063 13,335 12,479
708,659 569,457 420,232 356,548 315,094

Note: The Group adopted the new/revised standards and interpretations of ~ A7t - AEBEERBE-_TZTF=A=+—H

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 March IEF RN E B B E AR 2 37T
2006. Figures as at and for the year ended 31 March 2005 have been BRIRAIRER - R-_FFRFZA=T

—ARBEZAHLFEZBFERER
By R _BEOE=A=+—-BKREZE
ZEMIEFE 2 BFHREIBEFEZ
BFLAMEL BRI TMEE - PAALRAE -

restated as required. Figures as at and for the year ended 31 March 2004
have not been adjusted as it is not practicable to restate earlier years for
comparison purposes.

ot
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Financial Summary

05 iR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBI - ABEEFTE)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS meBEmExR
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$000F 1T $000F T $'000F T $000F T $000F 7T
(As restated)
(E7))
Turnover BEE 1,616,485 1,678,402 1,089,209 931,951 602,149
Cost of sales HEMA (1,250,782)  (1,297,880) (837,930) (728,506) (469,215)
Gross profit 7 365,703 380,522 251,279 203,445 132,934
Other (losses)/gains - net £ (B8) / (21,346) 1,962 585 1,834 2,883
Y- 38
Distribution and seling expenses DEREEXH (26,096) (27,418) (32,868) (29,221) (27,260)
General and administrative expenses  — M RATEX (148,018) (143,252) (111,514) (95,950) (80,221)
Operating profit e R 170,243 211,814 107,482 80,108 28,336
Finance income BEKA 8,693 3,133 2,089 1,673 2,764
Finance costs BEKK (3,050) (5,975) (2,538) (1,182) (1912)
Profit before income tax FTEHATR R 175,886 208,972 107,033 80,599 29,188
Income tax expenses FEf It (24,593) (33,620) (14,545) (12,004) (5,247)
Profit for the year FERT 151,203 175,352 92,488 68,595 23,941
Attributable to: 5B
Equity holders of the Company KARRERBA 138,226 159,487 85,760 66,269 21,835
Minority interests DERF R 13,067 15,865 6,728 2,326 2,106
151,293 175,352 92,488 68,595 23,941
Note: The Group adopted the new/revised standards and interpretations ~ A/it + AEEEREBEE_TETF=A=+—H

of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards for the year ended
31 March 2006. Figures as at and for the year ended 31 March
2005 have been restated as required. Figures as at and for the
year ended 31 March 2004 have not been adjusted as it is not

practicable to restate earlier years for comparison purposes.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
BV X &

To our shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present
the annual results of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (“Fujikon” or the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 March 2008.

FY2008 was a challenging period for all manufacturers with
production bases in the PRC, yet Fujikon was still able to derive
certain advantages in the industry. As the management had
foreseen rising material and labour costs a year earlier, we
reinforced our cost down programme and managed to maintain
our gross profit margin above the 22% mark during the reporting
period. Our core businesses, including the audio and multimedia
products segments, also reported respectable gains in sales. In
fact, it was only our communication products segment which,
undergoing a transitional period, led to the Group’s slight decline
in total revenue. However, the sales contraction experienced
highlights our current efforts at developing a series of new
products in conjunction with a leading European mobile phone
manufacturer. From this transitional period will come high-value
products that will ensure the communication products business
continues to be a significant revenue source.

The position that we share with the European mobile phone
manufacturer is representative of a concerted effort on our part
to play a greater role as original design manufacturer. In our

Johnny Yeung B & i

Chairman &
HEMRRER
AANERRESEMAREE TS ETELER
ERAR(TRADEEKBRAR(IELE]

HEBDBEE-_FTT/\F=ZA=1+—HLt
FEZEFEERS -

—EEN\EFURFEHAAETRERALE
EpmBERmME @R mkE - @80
o BERMNEEERNETRE —EEDS - AR
EEEERN—FABERERMEH RS TR
PREVBE - W HNGR T RAERIEE - Bt
CIEEFAENXDEEERFTN22%A L - £E
MEZLER  BREERZEBEMEBT
BREABNHEER - FEL ERAKELE
BRE-REIBEEMNRDEFERERFRE—
RIFESR  EBCAMRERT RN EER
Hi - HBRAT @B TR - BEIEE
% SEFHRENSEEEMRBTHBEME
mEFLERBEBNEZRARR -

BPEBNTDEFREBNEFERTTE
BERKRENTEDEEURBEENA
B o ARRMHEEEH KRR EREEBH
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Chairman’s Statement
F O B

gradual shift away from the original equipment manufacturing
segment, bolstering ties with our global business partners will
become increasingly important. To win their trust and support
we will double our efforts at research and development (“R&D”)
S0 as to be in step with the latest technologies. Concurrently, we
will remain abreast of the newest consumer trends.

Certainly, the audio and multimedia products businesses provide
ample proof of what strong R&D capabilities and healthy
relationships can achieve. In the case of the audio products
segment, we have enhanced ties with a well-known premium US
audio brand while at the same time attracted two established
European acoustic brands into the fold. Our R&D prowess
consequently gave rise to a series of high-end headphones,
and we will be cooperating with other key customers in efforts
to bolster the breadth and depth of their product lineups. The
multimedia products business also sustained steady growth
with a significant portion of its revenue derived from Microsoft.
By preserving this valuable relationship, we have continued to
reinforce our standing as a world-class electro-acoustic group,
a position from which to drive our business growth.

Looking ahead, we remain optimistic about all of our key business
interests. As said, the communication products segment is
set to capitalise on new product launches that will allow us to
enjoy increased revenue, while bonds with key customers will
grow from strength to strength. Similarly, ties with our European
partners in the audio segment will ensure that trendy, stylish, and
comfortable headphones with high acoustic quality will come to
fruition. As for our multimedia products business, here too we
maintain a positive outlook, and not just because of our strong
ties with Microsoft, but rather for the burgeoning relationship we
share with a global manufacturer of multimedia products.

The strengthening associations we enjoy with our existing clients
have highlighted the merit of the Group’s strategy to play a
partnership role in product development, a role that will not only
allow us to realise financial growth but consolidate our position
as a leading manufacturer for the world’s foremost brands.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

BB - FTAREIREBR BRI EZ
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DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors have recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK5.0 cents per share along with a special dividend
of HK5.0 cents per share, making the annual payout at HK15.0
cents per share.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors | would like to offer my
appreciation to our business partners, customers and stakeholders
for the continuing support which has proven pivotal for our
ongoing growth. The dedication and diligence demonstrated
by our management team and staff certainly merits recognition
as well. Entering a new financial period, we will endeavour to
enhance the Group’s performance and deliver greater returns to
our shareholders.

Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Chairman
Hong Kong, 3 July 2008

Chairman’s Statement
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With a quarter century of experience in the electro-acoustic industry,
we offer comprehensive project and program management senvices
o top-tier ODM/OEM customers worldwide.

Headguartered in Hong Kong with production facilities in Dongguan,

our collective technological resources and scalable manufacturing
services give us a real edge. Combining knowledgeable engineers
with state-of-the-art equipment, we provide an advanced
environment for product development and innovations.

You are invited to experience our professional services that our
loyal customers are currently enjoying. Contact us today to learn
more about how we can meet your unigue sourcing needs.

—_— =

Fu_jlkon @ F€ (€ ©Bluetooth
000 EE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Indicative of the communication products segment’s entry into
a transitional period, the Group experienced a slight decline in
revenue of 3.7% to HK$1,616.5 million. However, thanks to the
continuous implementation of an effective cost down programme,
the Group’s gross profit margin of over 22% remained comparable
to that of the previous financial year. In terms of profitability, profit
attributable to shareholders contracted to HK$138.2 million
(FY2007: HK159.5 million), due in part to a decrease in revenue
from the communication products segment. Nonetheless, sales
from the Group’s other core businesses, such as audio products
in particular, achieved satisfactory growth. Although external
factors had an adverse effect on Fujikon’s performance, rising
material and labour costs were effectively managed via prudent
management and enhancement of productivity.

Product Mix Analysis

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the communication
products business remained the largest revenue earner for the
Group, accounting for 31.4% of total revenue. Excluding the
communication products segment, audio products, multimedia
products, electronic products, accessories and others, and
electro-acoustic parts accounted for 28.1%, 9.2%, 28.9%, and
2.4% of total revenue, respectively.

Core Businesses

Communication Products

During the year, the Group bolstered relations with a leading
European mobile phone manufacturer through co-development
of new products, consequently enhancing its position as an
original design manufacturer. Due to the transitional period in
which new products were undergoing development, sales from
the communication products segment was down from HK$604.7
million reported in FY2007 to HK$507.5 million. However, given
that Fujikon and the aforesaid customer are jointly preparing
to deliver the new range of models on the market; the Group
stands to benefit from contributions made from the launch of
such products in the coming years.

L L S5

£ e) -

TR BNERESERBERBOTE &£
@WH&AE%&TE%S 7%%1,616,500,000/%
JT o AT *ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%lﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁx&m;ﬂzm
HIEHE - 2FEFREERFNR22% L

— By BEERE - BFFE - Hﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ
st AL 4 138,200,000 T ( ZEZH4F
P EE © 159,500,000/ L) © o AR
BANEREBHWA TR - @& a0k
SEHEMBELOEBNEEFERSAME
EFEZ2ERMNRBALERT - BRINEERE
ZHETENEERAEKAAYE  BE
BB REENRAETERRESEES
BIRER R R RS TR A S 15 KA R
jj °

EmASDIT

HE_ZZNF=-A=1+—HIFE ' @
EmFEBNEEEZERRARIER - EEBIKA
31.4% - ko F2ER ZHBER - &
FTEmMmMES  URBEBZTMHDFNERIKIA

28.1% > 9.2% ~ 28.9% }M2.4% °
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B Em
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604,700,000/ Jt T F& £507,500,000/%
o AM BEtmBE Mg, FEEHELS
FOMELSRE G - TEEITERRENE - SE A
RERZEEmEEEATROER °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
O R Moo i

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Core Businesses (Continued)

Audio Products

Among the highlights of the year was the audio products segment
which continued to realise solid sales growth. From FY2004 to
the year under review, this segment achieved a combined annual
growth rate (“CAGR”) of 12.9%. For FY2008 alone, this area of
business saw sales rise by 7.8% to HK454.2 million (FY2007:
HK$421.3 million). Fuelling this solid performance has been
Fujikon’s strengthening ties with a premium US audio brand for
which the Group anticipates further business growth.

Multimedia Products

Achieving a CAGR of 29.0% for the five-year period that
includes FY2008, the multimedia products segment remains
a steady source of revenue for the Group. During the vyear,
HK$148.5 million in sales was reported, up from HK$144.7
million in FY2007. While the shipment of headsets to Microsoft
for bundling with their Xbox 360™ game consoles continued
to account for a majority of the Group’s multimedia products
business, significant sales were achieved via ties with a global
manufacturer of multimedia products driven by surging demand
for internet instant messaging, online games and other internet
applications.

Non-core Businesses

Electronic Products, Accessories and Others

As an important part of the Group’s vertical integration, and
propelled by growth from external sales, this segment experienced
a significant 12.8% rise in sales over FY2007. Generating total
revenue of HK$466.8 million (FY2007: 413.7 million) during the
review period, this was largely attributed to increased sales of
cables as used for electronic products. In view of strong market
demand for electro-acoustic products, this segment is expected
to maintain healthy growth in the years to come.

Electro-acoustic Parts

Intent on withdrawing from the FM transmitter business, this
segment expectedly contributed less to the Group’s overall
revenue, experiencing a decline in revenue of 58.0% to HK$40.0
million (FY2007: HK$94.0 million). Though revenue contribution
from FM transmitters is anticipated to continue to diminish,
Fujikon will take the opportunity to direct existing customers from
this business to its other areas of expertise.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Non-core Businesses (Continued)

Market Analysis

Well aware of the importance for perpetuating ties with world-
class customers possessing international presence, Fujikon has
continuously nurtured such associations, consequently shipping
its products to their desired destinations or markets. Such
products are often redistributed by customers to different points
across the globe, thus allowing Fujikon to be less susceptible
to individual market conditions. As of the latest financial period,
revenue by geographical markets is well divided across Mainland
China, North America, Other Asian Countries, and Europe at
33.0%, 26.4%, 19.9%, and 18.0% respectively, with other
countries accounting for the remaining 2.7%.

PROSPECTS

Despite marginally diminished performance during the year, the
management remains optimistic about the Group’s core businesses
in the near future, drawing confidence from Fujikon’s strength in
original equipment manufacturing and increasing participation in
original design manufacturing. Instead of expanding the customer
base aggressively, the Group will strive to devote more resources
in R&D to enrich and enhance the product range.

Having established strategic ties with a leading European mobile
phone manufacturer where relations have continued to flourish,
revenue from the communications products segment is set
to rebound in the next few years as the transitional period
experienced gives rise to new product launches. With a series
of replacement products, high-value products and Bluetooth
devices set to reach global customers, Fujikon expects to realise
higher margin from such introductions.

As for the audio products segment, the trend towards “music on
the go” and consumers requiring superior acoustic capabilities
will create strong demand for high quality earphones and midsize
headphones. Experienced in serving the world’s premium brands
and as a preferred partner of these companies, the Group
is in a favourable position to capture abundant opportunities
ahead. In addition to ties with a premium US brand, the Group
has recently secured the backing of two established European
acoustic customers, spurring co-development of a series of high-
end headphones for further business growth.

Management Discussion and Analysis
O E R Mo A
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

The multimedia products segment looks set to continue
generating steady contributions to the Group as it enters a
new financial term. With interest in Microsoft Xbox 360™ game
console bundling headsets expected to remain firm, and demand
by a global manufacturer for multimedia headsets, as used in
conjunction with instant messaging, online gaming card and other
internet applications, continuing to grow, the Group expects this
area of business to achieve further inroads.

Even though the management is positive towards Fujikon’s future
outlook, to support such optimism will require added emphasis
on bolstering ties with its key customers. Precedents indicate
that such alliances have spawned opportunities for the Group
to consolidate its position as an original design manufacturer,
enhance its competitiveness, and increase customers’ confidence
and trust in Fujikon. Accordingly, the onus will be on the Group
to back such valued relationships through continuous progress in
the areas of R&D. In addition to enhancing front-end capabilities,
bolstering backend competencies to combat rising raw material
and labour costs is equally imperative; hence, supply chain
management and manufacturing capacity must be constantly
monitored and enhanced. By utilising a holistic approach, Fujikon
is thus confident of its ability to achieve sustained long-term
growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year under review, the gross profit maintained above
22% this year. The stable gross profit was mainly attributed
by the continuous enhancement on supply chain management
and operational efficiency even though there are a number of
adverse factors that put pressure on the cost margins, including
the appreciation in RMB and the soaring cost for labour and
materials.

Distribution and selling expenses was decreased by approximately
4.8% to HK$26.1 million this year (FY2007: HK$27.4 million).
General and administrative expenses rose by approximately 3.3%
to HK$148.0 million this year (FY2007: HK$143.3 million). The
increase was mainly due to a share-based payment expense of
HK$5.9 million incurred for this year.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Net current assets at 31 March 2008 amounted to approximately
HK$457.0 million (FY2007: HK$322.0 million). The Group’s current
and quick ratio were approximately 2.5 times (FY2007: 1.9 times)
and 2.0 times (FY2007: 1.3 times), respectively.

The Group had cash and bank deposits (included pledged bank
deposits) of approximately HK$325.6 million at 31 March 2008,
representing a significant increase of approximately 2.0 times
against approximately HK$160.4 million last year. Approximately
41.9%, 9.5% and 48.1% of the total cash and bank deposits
were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars, respectively and the remaining in other currencies. At
31 March 2008, the Group had aggregated banking facilities
of approximately HK$388.5 million (FY2007: HK$333.3 million)
from several banks for loans and trade financing, with an unused
balance of approximately HK$354.9 million (FY2007: HK$277.0
million).

Capital Structure

At 31 March 2008, the total borrowings of the Group were
approximately HK$33.6 million (FY2007: HK$49.2 million), of
which approximately 90.5% and 9.5% were due within one year
and between two to five years, respectively.

The Group’s borrowings consisted of several secured short-
term bank loans of approximately HK$27.7 million (FY2007:
HK$36.6) and a hire purchase loan of approximately HK$5.9
million (FY2007: HK$8.6 million) of which approximately 82.4%
was denominated in Renminbi and the remaining in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group did not have any unsecured shorter-term bank
loan this year (FY2007:HK$4.0 million).

Approximately HK$55.1 million of certain properties and
machinery and land use right have been pledged for several
secured short-term bank loans and a hire purchase loan (FY2007:
HK$53.6 million). The Group’s borrowings bore interest at rates
ranging from approximately 2.8% to 7.5% per annum (FY2007:
ranging from 3.8% to 6.4%).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Capital Structure (Continued)

The Group’s gearing ratio at 31 March 2008 was approximately
5.0% (FY2007: 9.2%), which was measured on the basis of total
borrowings as a percentage of total equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. If the balance of cash and bank
deposits at 31 March 2008 was taken into account, the Group
was in a net cash position.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China
with most transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate.
The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts to
manage such exposure.

Employee Information

At 31 March 2008, the Group employed a total of over approximately
10,000 (FY2007: over 12,000) employees. The employment costs
(including the directors’ emoluments) accounted for approximately
HK$267.7 million (FY2007: HK$250.3 million).

The Group has developed its human resources policies and
procedures based on performance and merit. Employees are
rewarded on a performance-related basis within the general
framework of its salary and bonus system. Discretionary bonus is
linked to the profit performance of the Group as well as individual
performance. Benefits include staff accommodation, medical
schemes, share option scheme, Mandatory Provident Fund for
employees in Hong Kong and statesponsored retirement plans for
employees in the Mainland China. The Group has also developed
training programs to its management and employees to ensure
they are properly trained.

Financial Guarantee

At 31 March 2008, the Company had provided corporate
guarantees of approximately HK$435.2 million (FY2007:
HK$260.7 million) to several banks to secure banking facilities
of its subsidiaries. The facilities utilized by the subsidiaries at 31
March 2008 approximately HK$33.6 million (FY2007: HK$56.3
million).

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. YEUNG Chi Hung, Johnny, aged 63, is a co-founder of the
Group. He has been the Chairman and the executive Director since
2000. Mr. Yeung is responsible for the overall strategic planning
and business development of the Group. He is instrumental in
the formulation and implementation of the business policies of
the Group. Mr. Yeung was elected the Honorary Fellowship 2004
by the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries
and Directors Of The Year Awards 2007 (Executive Director):
Listed Companies (SEHK — Non Hang Seng Index Constituents)
by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Yeung has over 40
years of experience in the electronics and acoustics industry. In
addition, Mr. Yeung is the Executive Committee Member of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, a President
of the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries,
a Council Member of the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Governing Council, the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Electronics
Industries Association and the Honorary Chairman & the Vice
Chairman of Dongguan Electronics Industries Association. Mr.
Yeung is the father of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben, the executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. YUEN Yee Sai, Simon, aged 66, is a co-founder of the
Group. He has been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive
Director since 2000. Mr. Yuen is responsible for the overall
strategic planning of production and operation related affairs
of the Group. He was elected the Associateship 2004 by the
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr.
Yuen has over 40 years of experience in the electronics industry
and has in depth knowledge of trading in the PRC. In addition,
he is a Vice-chairman of the Forth Committee of the Association
of Foreign Investment Enterprises of Dongguan City, Honorary
Citizen of Dongguan City and Humen Town. Mr. Yuen is the
father of Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman, the executive Director of
the Company.

Mr. CHOW Man Yan, Michael, aged 59, is a co-founder of
the Group. He has been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the
executive director of the Group since 2000. He is responsible
for the overall strategic planning of purchasing related affairs of
the Group. Mr. Chow was elected the Associateship 2004 by
the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. He
has over 40 years of experience in the electronics and acoustics
industry, especially in production and material management and
inventory control. Mr. Chow is the brother of Ms. Chow Lai Fung,
the executive Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (Continued)

Mr. YUEN Chi King, Wyman, aged 34, is an executive Director.
Mr. Yuen joined the Group in August 2006 and is responsible
for overseeing the implementation of corporate strategy and
the financial functions of the Group. Mr. Yuen graduated from
the University of Toronto, Canada with a Bachelor degree of
Commerce and from Saint Louis University, United States of
America with a Master degree of Finance. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Yuen has worked for a few regional financial securities
institutions and was responsible for the provision of corporate
finance advisory services. Mr. Yuen has more than seven years
of experience in financial securities industry. He is a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yuen
is the son of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon, the Joint Deputy Chairman
of the Company.

Mr. YEUNG Siu Chung, Ben, aged 32, is an executive Director.
In November 2002, Mr. Yeung joined Fujikon Industrial Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of the Company, in which he served in numerous
sales and marketing and project management positions for about
three years. Mr. Yeung re-joined the Group as an executive
Director in August 2007 and is responsible for overseeing the
business development functions of the Group. He holds a Master
of Business Administration degree from Yale University in the
United States of America and a Bachelor of Science degree in
International Business from Pepperdine University in the United
States of America. Mr. Yeung has more than seven years of
working experience in an engineering and marketing capacity.
He is the son of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, the Chairman of
the Company.

Ms. CHOW Lai Fung, aged 44, is an executive Director. Ms.
Chow joined the Group in March 2001 and was appointed
an executive Director with effect from 1 August 2007. She is
responsible for the overall financial management, accounting
functions of the Group. Ms. Chow was also appointed to be a
Company Secretary and an Qualified Accountant of the Group in
October 2007 and April 2008, respectively. She graduated from
the University of Missouri-Kansas City, United States of America
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting. She has over
10 years of experience in management, accounting and finance.
Ms Chow is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She is the sister of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael,
the Joint Deputy Chairman of the Company.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. CHANG Chu Cheng, aged 64, has been an independent
non-executive Director since March 2000. Dr. Chang was a
founder and the Chairman of Varitronix International Limited for
29 years. He is presently the Chairman of iView Limited. Dr Chang
remains as the Honorary Chairman of Varitronix and serves as
a Non-executive Director of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited,
both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. He gained his doctorate in Solid State Electronics from
the University of Manchester Institute of Science & Technology
in 1969 and lectured in physics and electronics at the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Dr Chang is currently the Honorary
Advisor of Hong Kong Critical Components Manufacturers
Association, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Photographic
and Optics Manufacturers Association.

Mr. CHE Wai Hang, Allen, aged 40, has been an independent
non-executive Director since June 2005. He holds the bachelor
of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws from the
University of Hong Kong. He was admitted as a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1993 and has been a member
of The Law Society of Hong Kong since 1993. He has been
practicing as a solicitor in Hong Kong for over 15 years and
is a partner of Wong, Hui & Co., Solicitors. He had been an
independent non-executive director of the Company for four
years from March 2000.

Mr. LEE Yiu Pun, aged 45, has been an independent non-
executive Director since June 2005. He holds the bachelor of
commerce degree majoring in accounting and marketing from
the University of Calgary, Canada. Mr. Lee is currently a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Lee worked as the group financial
controller of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited from 1994 to 1999,
the financial controller of Magician Industries (Holdings) Limited
from 1999 to 2000, and deputy finance director of Henderson
China Holdings Limited from 2000 to 2001, all of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lee is currently
the vice president of finance of a private group of companies.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. MAN Yu Ming, aged 68, is the Managing Director of Fujikon
Packing Material Company Limited. He joined the Group in July
1987.

Mr. CHENG Shek Ping, aged 62, is the Managing Director
of Fujikon International Limited. He joined the Group in June
1984,

Mr. CHEUNG Ying Chun, aged 55, is the Managing Director of
Fujikon Precision Metal Products Limited. He joined the Group
in September 1988.

Mr. ZHU Jianhuan, aged 48, is the Managing Director of Ningbo

Fusion Electrical Material Company Limited. He joined the Group
in May 2000.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Report of the Directors

The directors (the “Directors”) of Fujikon Industrial Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) have the pleasure of presenting the
annual report together with the audited financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 11 to the audited
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 5 to the audited
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 44 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HKB.0 cents per ordinary share and a
special interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share were
paid during the year. The Directors recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share and a special
dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share, which, subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, will bring the total dividends for the year ended 31 March
2008 to approximately HK$58,977,000.

OTHER RESERVES

Movements in other reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 22 to the audited financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the
Company are set out in notes 20 and 21, respectively, to the
audited financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

E R O

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2008, the Company’s reserves of approximately
HK$138,800,000 (subject to provisions of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended)) and retained earnings of
approximately HK$45,576,000 were available for distribution to
the Company’s shareholders.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the
year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to approximately HK$172,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 6 to the audited financial
statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings at 31 March 2008 are set out in
note 18 to the audited financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in note 31 to the
audited financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s financial information for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 4 to 6 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny

Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon

Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael

Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman

Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben (appointed on 1 August 2007)
Ms. Chow Lai Fung (appointed on 1 August 2007)

Mr. Ng Kwong Hing (resigned on 4 April 2007)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Chang Chu Cheng
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

Pursuant to Bye-Law 99 of the bye-laws (the “Bye-Laws”) of
the Company, Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai,
Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael will retire from the office
of Directors by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(the “Annual General Meeting”) of the Company. Such Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting. All the other Directors will remain in office.

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors have an unexpired service contract which
is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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Report of the Directors
E O

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2008, the directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies:

a) Interests in the Company

EERFRETHRAERAQAFRE
BMEQAT 2R HERORES
Z s

RZZEZENF=ZA=+—8 RBREF
7 MR IR P B 352{5k 5 B 2 B aC fift Prac
B RARBREBEBRAXSMARRAA
(XA DREBELTRARAESTETESR
GZEETHNEMTRENEGE BN
ARBEBITHABRARAREEE QA
(EEREBZMBE RO FEXVER(] F 75 M
S0 2B - HEARD REFTHEA
THERSIKR

a) RAQTZER

Number of ordinary shares

Number of
underlying shares
(in respect of
share options) @

of HK$0.10 each HRRAEE
BREE010ETZEEREE (REREnS) @

Interest of Approximate

Beneficial ~ Beneficiary controlled Beneficial percentage of

Name of Directors interest of a trust corporations interest Total shareholding
2R BEngs EER ZRNiERS BERER @ BOsREIL
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny #5&5 91,000 - 211,714,500" 13,300,000 225,105,500 59.05%
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon J& 4 91,000 - 211,714,500" 13,300,000 225,105,500 59.05%
Chow Man Yan, Michael [&XX{= 91,000 - 211,714,500" 13,300,000 225,105,500 59.05%
Yuen Chi King, Wyman J&-F41 - - - 400,000 400,000 0.10%
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben #5418 - 211,714,5000 - - 211,714,500 55.54%
Chang Chu Cheng 5RHEIAY 546,000 - - - 546,000 0.14%

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited



DIRECTORS’

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

b) Interests in the Associated Corporation - Acoustic b)

Touch Limited

Report of the Directors
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EERFTETHAERARATHA
BELAFAZRD MERORES
2Kz (&)

A E & QT 2 #3E — Acoustic
Touch Limited

ordinary shares of

Number of Approximate

percentage of

Name of Directors Capacity US$1.00 each shareholding
SREE1.00ETT
EEHR 54 ZEREE BRERA D
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny Interest of controlled corporation 15 M 33.33%
15 2t IUNSIiEOE £
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon Interest of controlled corporation 150 33.33%
IR T £ T A B R RS
Chow Man Yan, Michael Interest of controlled corporation 150 33.33%
A= 2 A Rl R
Notes: ez -

These Shares were held by Acoustic Touch Limited, which was
owned as to 15 shares (33.33%) by Gentle Smile Development
Limited, as to 15 shares (33.33%) by Sky Talent Enterprises
Limited, as to 5 shares (11.11%) by Artbo Industries Group
Limited, as to 5 shares (11.11%) by East Sino Consultants
Limited and as to 5 shares (11.11%) by Loyal Fair Group
Limited.

Gentle Smile Development Limited was wholly owned by
Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael. Sky Talent Enterprises Limited
was wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon. Each of East
Sino Consultants Limited, Artbo Industries Group Limited and
Loyal Fair Group Limited was beneficially owned by the Yeung
Family Trust, which was a discretionary trust founded by Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny and the objects of which were the
family members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr.
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

Under the SFO, each of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr.
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael was
deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Acoustic
Touch Limited was interested.

Share options were granted to the Directors under the
share option schemes of the Company, details of which are
separately disclosed under the paragraph headed “ Directors’
rights to acquire shares or debentures” below.

7 % I 15 B Acoustic Touch Limited
B A M E 5 5l AGentle Smile
Development Limited$# & 150% i 15
(BN33.33%) * Sky Talent Enterprises
Limited# & 15/% i 17 ( B133.33%)
LA K A Artbo Industries Group Limited -
East Sino Consultants Limited X Loyal
Fair Group Limited? Bl# &5 %%
(11.11%) °

Gentle Smile Development Limited
REANXC L2 EHAE - Sky Talent
Enterprises Limitedf J& i 4 %& &
% & % B - East Sino Consultants
Limited ~ Artbo Industries Group
Limited & Loyal Fair Group Limited
Bl 2#EETESYeung Family Trust
(BEBEEFE I 22EES  EXR
ABBEREEOREKE(BEHD
HASE &) ) BEmEE °

BIEFHF LB EKRD - BEHELLE -
TR A8 ST A R A Sk E AR ER
Acoustic Touch Limitedfr# A 2 &5
FEEREE -

BREDREARABERESSRT
B BERESIFBERTXIEESE
ANBDRESH 2 R | —BRPRE -
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Report of the Directors

E A O

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interest and short position in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies as
at 31 March 2008.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted share option schemes under which
it may grant options to eligible participants (including executive
Directors) to subscribe for Shares in the Company. Details of
the schemes are set out in note 21 to the audited financial
statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed
on 21 August 2002, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) which complied with Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules and terminated the share option scheme
adopted on 23 March 2000 (the “Old Scheme”). The options
granted under the Old Scheme prior to its termination remain in
full force and effect.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(Continued)

On 18 August 2003, an ordinary resolution was passed for
refreshing the 10% limit (the “10% Limit”) under the New Scheme
on the total number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under all the share option
schemes of the Company. Following the refreshment of the 10%
Limit, details of the New Scheme are as follows:

1. Purpose of the New Scheme

As incentive or rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the New Scheme

Any eligible employee (whether full-time or part-time,
including any executive director), any non-executive director,
any shareholder, any supplier and any customer of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest, and
any other party having contribution to the development of
the Group.

3. Total number of Shares available for issue under the
New Scheme and percentage to the issued share
capital at 31 March 2008

5,059,000 shares (approximately 1.3% of the total issued
share capital).

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
New Scheme

Not exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company for the time being in any 12-month period. Any
further grant of options in excess of such limit must be
separately approved by the Company’s shareholders in
general meeting.

5. The period within which the Shares must be taken
up under an option

A period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the
date of offer of that option) to be determined and notified
by the Directors to the grantee thereof.
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Report of the Directors
E O )

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(Continued)

6.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no
minimum period required under the New Scheme for the
holding of an option before it can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance
of the option and the period within which payments
or calls must or may be made

A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 on or
before the date of acceptance (which may not be later than
21 days from the date of offer).

The basis of determining the exercise price

Being determined by the Directors and being not less than
the highest of:

a. the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer;

b. the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer; and

c. the nominal value of the Shares.

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The New Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 3 September 2002 (being the date
of fulfilment of all conditions on the adoption of the New
Scheme)

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Report of the Directors
# R

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARESOR EZB ARG HES 2R
DEBENTURES

At 31 March 2008, movements in the share options granted to RZZEZENF=A=+—H RELXARFZ
and held by the Directors of the Group under the share option  EREFTE BTV HAEEEEFE B
schemes of the Company were as follows: IR EhENT -

Number of underlying Shares BB % E

Lapsed as a
Granted  Exercised result of Sub-
Beginning during during termination of Endof  scription
of the Year the Year the Year  employment the Year price

pershare  Date of grant  Exercise period (dd/mm/yyyy)
£ FREH FREE  BEBmANR R SRIRE REAS S8 (B/R/F)
000F A 0008 000F A 0008 000F A% HKSPETT

Old Scheme Estal
Directors %
Yaung Chi Hung, Johnny 1 6,000 - - - 6,000 1287 02/05/2000  02/05/2000 - 01/05/2010
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon B 6,000 - - - 6,000 1087 02/05/2000  02/05/2000 - 01/05/2010
Chow Man Yan, Michael B 6,000 - - - 6,000 1287 02/05/2000  02/05/2000 - 01/05/2010
Ng Kiwong Hing (Note j 400 - 400) - - 1087 02/05/2000  02/05/2001 - 01/05/2010 (Note i) (#sZii)
RER (H) 400 - (400) - - 1287 02/05/2000  02/05/2002 - 01/0/2010 (Note if) (422
Total: &3 : 18,800 - 800) - 18,000
New Scheme et
Directors €%
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny #5514 1,800 - - - 1,800 1.00 03/05/2004  03/05/2005 - 02/05/2014 (Note ij (#3%i)
1,800 - - - 1,800 1.00 03/05/200¢  03/05/2006 - 02/05/2014 (Note i) (i)
- 3700 - - 3700 198 20/05/2007  22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 (Note ij (#3%i)
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon B4 1800 - - - 1,800 100 03/05/2004  03/05/2005 - 02/05/2014 (Note i} (#57i)
1,800 - - - 1,800 100 03/05/2004  03/05/2006 - 02/05/2014 Note i) (#ii)
- 3700 - - 3700 198 20/05/2007  22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 (Note i} (#53i)
Chow Man Yan, Michas! B3 1800 - - - 1,800 1.00 03/05/2004  03/05/2005 - 02/05/2014 (Note i) (#s2ii)
1,800 - - - 1800 100 03/05/2004  03/05/2006 - 02/05/2014 (Note i) (33
- 3700 - - 3700 198 22/05/2007  22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 (Note i) (#s2ii)
Ng Kwong Hing (Note ) REEE (71 500 - 500) - - 100 03/05/2004  03/05/2005 - 02/05/2014 (Note i) (#z2ii)
500 - (500) - - 1.00 03/05/200¢  03/05/2006 - 02/05/2014 (Note i) (i)
Yuen Chi King, Wyman B 741 - 400 - - 400 198 20/05/2007  22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 (Note i} (#7i)
Total: #5f : 11,800 11,500 (1,000) - 22,300
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Report of the Directors
E )

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Ng Kwong Hing resigned as an executive Director with effect
from 4 April 2007.

(i) The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from
the date of grant.

(iif) The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from
the date of grant.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding companies a
party to any arrangements to enable any of the Directors or the
Company’s chief executive to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed in
the paragraph headed “Continuing Connection Transactions”
below and the related party transactions disclosed in note 36
to the audited financial statements, no contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in
which any of the Directors or the Company’s chief executive had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

The following persons (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company’s issued shares at 31
March 2008 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary shares in
issue which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and
which have been recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Report of the Directors
O R

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTSIN FERRRAQAAKRGOKREHBK G

THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF 2 #E%(#&)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Approximate

Number percentage
Name of shareholder of Shares Capacity of interest
(Note 1)
e RBEE 54 BOEZEIL
(Hfat1)

Acoustic Touch Limited 211,714,500 Beneficial owner 55.54%
ERBEAA

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited 211,714,500 Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 55.54%
IR F 2 s (ffiE2)

Golden Hope Financial Limited 211,714,500 Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 55.54%
B AR 2w (fat2)

Gentle Smile Development Limited 211,714,500 Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 55.54%
B AR 2 Em (fat2)

Silverfun Property Limited 211,714,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) (Note 2) 55.54%
EREAGRENEEARIN) (Hzt2)

Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen 225,105,500 Interest of spouse (Note 3) 59.05%
RAEHRT ot s (f7:73)

Ms. Leung Woon Yee 225,105,500 Interest of spouse (Note 4) 59.05%
RIagE L ot s (frit4)

Ms. Cai Liting 225,105,500 Interest of spouse (Note 5) 59.05%
BEERT o s (f175)

DJE Investment S.A. 34,302,000 Investment manager 9.00%
RERKE

Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG 34,302,000 Investment manager (Note 6) 9.00%
REKE (frit6)

Ehrhardt Dr. Jens Alfred Karl 34,302,000 Investment manager (Note 6) 9.00%
REKE (frit6)

David Michael Webb 3,276,000 Beneficial owner 0.86%
BERBEAA

19,494,000 Interest of controlled corporation (Note 7) 511%

EHIRE 2 s (HiE7)
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E )

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

THE

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

Interests in Shares and underlying Shares stated above
represented long positions.

Acoustic Touch Limited was owned as to 15 shares (33.33%) by
Gentle Smile Development Limited, as to 15 shares (33.33%) by
Sky Talent Enterprises Limited, as to 5 shares (11.11%) by Artbo
Industries Group Limited, as to 5 shares (11.11%) by East Sino
Consultants Limited and as to 5 shares (11.11%) by Loyal Fair
Group Limited.

Gentle Smile Development Limited was wholly owned by Mr.
Chow Man Yan, Michael. Sky Talent Enterprises Limited was
wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon. Each of East Sino
Consultants Limited, Artbo Industries Group Limited and Loyal
Fair Group Limited was wholly owned by Silverfun Property
Limited, which was in turn wholly owned by Golden Hope
Financial Limited. Silverfun Property Limited was the trustee
of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then beneficially owned by the
Yeung Family Trust, a discretionary trust and the objects of which
were the family members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny. Golden
Hope Financial Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny.

Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen was the wife of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny.

Ms. Leung Woon Yee was the wife of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai,
Simon.

Ms. Cai Liting was the wife of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

DJE Investment S.A. held 34,302,000 shares. DJE Investment
S.A. was owned as to approximately 81.0% by Dr. Jens Ehrhardt
Kapital AG, which was in turn owned as to approximately 68.5%
by Ehrhardt Dr. Jens Alfred Karl.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

7. These shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited,
the entire issued share capital of which was owned by Mr.
David Michael Webb. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. David Michael
Webb was deemed to be interested in all the shares held by
Preferable Situation Assets Limited. Mr. David Michael Webb had
an aggregate interest in 22,770,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors,
there was no other person who had an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO at 31 March 2008.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 58% of the Group’s total turnover
and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less
than 36% of the Group’s total purchases. The largest customer
to the Group accounted for approximately 30% of the Group’s
total turnover. None of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) of the Company
had an interest in these five largest customers.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain continuing related party transactions as disclosed in note
36 to the audited financial statements also constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules,
and are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. During the year, the Group had continuing
connected transactions with The Bright Printing Press and Paper
Products Limited (“Bright Printing”).

The Group has purchased paper-related products from and
sold printed PVC sheets/boxes to Bright Printing, amounting to
approximately HK$4,004,000 and HK$14,292,000, respectively.
All these transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company according to the terms
set out in the relevant master agreements governing them.

These transactions constituted continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by reason that Bright
Printing is ultimately owned as to an aggregate of 97% by Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon, and Mr. Chow
Man Yan, Michael, all being Directors of the Company.

Regarding the continuing connected transactions mentioned
above, the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
and confirmed that all such transactions have been entered
into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(b) onnormal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Company than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(c) inaccordance with the relevant master agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Board of Directors engaged the auditors of the
Company to perform certain factual finding procedures on the
above continuing connected transaction on a sample basis in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related Services 4400
“Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding
Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditors have reported their
factual findings on the selected samples based on the agreed
procedures to the Board of Directors.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, there is no other connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction which needs to be disclosed
in accordance with the requirements set out in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board,

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 3 July 2008
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and endeavours in following the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the “Code on Corporate
Governance Practices” (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Board has set up the Remuneration Committee and has
adopted a set of terms of reference of the Audit Committee
which were prepared in accordance with the Code Provisions.
The Board has also set up an internal audit team to monitor the
effectiveness of the internal control of the Group. Throughout the
year, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions, save
for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code.

According to code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Up to the
date of this annual report of the Company, the Board has not
appointed any individual to the post of chief executive officer. The
responsibilities of the chief executive officer have been performed
collectively by all the executive directors, including the chairman,
of the Company. The Board considers that this arrangement is
proper and beneficial to the Group as the stability and efficiency
of the Company’s operations, as well as the continuity of the
Company’s policies and strategies, can be maintained. Going
forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of
this arrangement and considers appointing an individual as the
chief executive officer when it thinks appropriate.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors and senior management of the Group
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all directors and senior management
of the Group, all directors and senior management of the Group
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors and senior management throughout the
year ended 31 March 2008.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

ERELER
EEgARmAERRKRENDRER  UBH
BREREEMERGAARAA ([BRM])E
ZFEMHRANT EmARR D14 [REER
FEASTR (TSP R Ptz <7 Rg s (1 <7 Rl
&>z ]) »

EEgCORUFMERS YO RAEREZE
ERMN-ERERE - RFREREIIET
AR - EFGITE KL NERERTE -
NERANEBE ARG 2R - FAR - AR
A — B BT T AR - MR BE ST Rl Z S R
SCEA2AGRBRIN o

RIETRIZ FAMEXEA2.11% - EFERTT
REEH 2 BEETHR X TEAR—- AL
BiT - BEARRZEHRAY EFSUE
ZEEFMATBETRAR - TRAER B
BERMARREZRNTER(BREIE)AR
BT - BEFERR  WARHFAERALQT
EBNRBEMEMBAE - AREFARFBER
MR FENE  WHAKEME VEAE
KRB KK - EEEHTEREMUBL Y
ZRRR - WRERBEEREEZRETHA
£ o

RERZEESH

ARBERAEEEEZLRHREREEELETE
FRGEM—ETATA - HIERTER
R A E10PT B AR E (1R ESTRI) -
KAAEEEREZTNSNEEREELRE
TR REE_TEN\F=A=1+—HL
FE AEEREELSREREDEST
FETAREELRSREEBETRESRRS
BT AR ST RIFTIRE 2 1R 2 o



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At the date of this annual report, the Board is composed of six
executive directors comprising Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny as
the chairman, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan,
Michael as the joint deputy chairmen, Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman,
Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben and Ms Chow Lai Fung; and three
independent non-executive directors comprising Dr. Chang Chu
Cheng, Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen and Mr. Lee Yiu Pun. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a
specific term of one year.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of corporate
strategies, the setting of appropriate strategic policies and
internal control, and the oversight of the operation and financial
performance of the Group. Each year, regular matters reserved for
the Board include overall strategies of the Group, annual budgets,
financial statements, dividend policy and other major corporate
activities. For such purposes, the Board held five meetings during
the year, with an attendance rate of 100%.

The management of the Group, as delegated by the Board,
is responsible for execution of business strategies adopted,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and
risk management procedures, and oversight of the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE

The Board held five meetings during the year and the attendance
rate was 100%. Details of the attendance of each of the Directors
at board meetings and committee meetings held for the year
ended 31 March 2008 are set out in the table below:

EEgRZESEZHERBR
FERNESEeRTARREZ EREXA
100% - REZ-ZEENF=_A=+—HI
FE O SEEHEEEeeINTEEEE
ZEBHEHAINNTE

No. of meetings attended/held

HEBITEBRE
Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
2= EEE EREEY FMZEEE
Executive Directors HITESE
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 155 5/5 - -
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R i 48 5/5 - -
Chow Man Yan, Michael Bxi= 5/5 - -
Yuen Chi King, Wyman TRFHR 5/5 - 1/1
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben® 150 ER0 3/3 - -
Chow Lai Fung® ARERO 3/3 - -
Independent Non-Executive BV E#HITES
Directors
Chang Chu Cheng IRABIAR 5/5 2/2 1/1
Che Wai Hang, Allen BHEE 5/5 2/2 1/1
Lee Yiu Pun R 5/5 2/2 1/1
Attendance rate & 100% 100% 100%
Note: it
1. Each of them has been appointed as an Executive Director with 1. P2 R_ETLFNA—AEZEAER

effect from 1 August 2007

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not set up a nomination committee and is
responsible for the nomination of new directors. It reviews
regularly the need to appoint additional directors with appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience.

During the year, the Board held a meeting to review and
consider the appointment of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben and
Ms Chow Lai Fung as executive directors of the Company. All
Directors, included all members of the Remuneration Committee,
attended the meeting to approve their remuneration and service
agreements.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board. Its
duties are clearly defined in its terms of reference which have been
prepared and adopted according to the Code Provisions. The
Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the review
and determination of the remuneration policies and packages
for directors and senior management of the Company. The
remuneration packages of the executive Directors are stipulated
in their service agreements with the Company. Such packages,
including basic salaries, director’'s fee and discretionary bonus,
are determined by reference to their duties, responsibilities and
experience, prevailing market conditions and their expected
time spent and contributions on the affairs of the Company.
The emoluments of the independent non-executive Directors
are determined with regard to their estimated time spent on the
affairs of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of four
members, comprising three independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen (Chairman), Dr. Chang Chu
Cheng and Mr. Lee Yiu Pun, and one executive director, Mr.
Yuen Chi King, Wyman.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to review the remuneration packages for each of the Directors
and senior management of the Company.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the independent
auditor of the Company, provided both audit and non-audit
services to the Company for a total remuneration of approximately
HK$1,742,000. The relevant fee paid for audit services amounted
to approximately HK$1,260,000. The balance of the remuneration
related to the non-audit services which mainly included the review
of interim results, amounting to approximately HK$186,000;
taxation services, amounting to approximately HK$257,000;
and other non-audit services, amounting to approximately
HK$39,000.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board. Its duties are
clearly defined in its terms of reference which have been prepared
and adopted according to the Code Provisions. It provides an
important link between the Board and the Company’s auditor
in matters coming within the scope of the group audit. It also
reviews the Group’s financial reporting prior to their approval by
the Board, the effectiveness of the external and internal audit,
evaluation of internal controls and risk management.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors. It is chaired by Mr. Lee Yiu Pun with Mr. Che
Wai Hang, Allen and Dr. Chang Chu Cheng as members. During
the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and conducted
the following activities:

(1) reviewed results announcements, interim and annual
reports of the Group, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval;

2) reviewed the internal controls, risk management and
financial matters of the Group in pursuance of the terms
of reference;

(3) reviewed the reports from the auditor of the Company in
respect of the interim and annual financial statements;
and

(4) made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment
of the auditor of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of financial statements of the Group.

The responsibilities of the independent auditor of the Company
are set out in Independent Auditor’s Report to the shareholders
of the Company on pages 41 to 42 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control so as to ensure the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded.
The system of internal control is designed to manage the
risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement, loss or fraud.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group through the Audit

Committee and the internal audit team of the Company.

Hong Kong, 3 July 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FUJIKON
INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujikon
Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 122, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 March 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 3 July 2008
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Balance Sheets
EEHA

As at 31 March 2008 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

S

RZZEZNF=-A=+—H(BSEHBEI  UBEBTE)
Group Company
piS-: | ARNF
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
(73 $000F 7T $000F T $000F T $000F 7T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment % - BELRE 6 214,607 224,665 - -
Investment properties BENE 7 5,220 4,360 - -
Leasehold land and land use rights &L e t3t
Bk 8 21,527 21,198 = -
Non-current deposits ¥nBEE 9 14,627 - = -
Avaiable-for-sale financial assets A/t HEMBEE 10 - 3,963 = -
Investment in subsidiaries REELRZRE 11 - - 139,000 139,000
Deferred tax assets BIEHEEE 19 17 186 - -
 Total non-current assets FROAEAE 0 266998 264872 139000 139,000
Current assets TEEE
Inventories & 12 163,838 221,205 - -
Trade receivables JERER 13 196,512 258,868 - -
Other receivables H it A 13 29,447 34,461 183 180
Other financial assets at fair BAFER ABS
value through profit o loss MEMRBEE 15 45,369 7,238 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries ~ EUIIBARTIE 11 - - 167,458 153,865
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 16 - 2132 - -
Cash and bank deposits ReRFAFET 16 325,593 158,310 439 1,255
Total current assets RERESE 0 760759 682214 168080 155,300
Current liabilities RBaE
Trade payables [ERER 17 (139,936) (185,280) - -
Accruals and other payables BT ERR
EMENTRE 17 (106,406) (99,803) (10,928) (9,512)
Current income tax liabilities ZHEHAR (22,979) (30,776) (340) (232)
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 14 (4,041) (1,055) - -
Bank borrowings RITIER 18 (30,416) (43,279) - -
_Total current liabilities nBAfReE 0 (303778) (360199 (11,268 | ©.744)
_Netourentassets . RRRERE 456981 ... 001 L jeeelel 145,556
 Total assets less current liabiiies #REHAHRE 712979 676303 206812 284,556
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Bank borrowings BITER 18 (3,185) (5,915) - -
Deferred tax liabilities ERHIBAE 19 (1,135) (1,021) - -
_Total non-current liabilities ~ ¥RHRERE | (4320 6% -
Net assets EEFE 708,659 569,457 295,812 284,556
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable FBA2 ARE
to the Company’s equity holders 58 A 2 RA R #45
Share capital BA 20 38,119 37,732 38,119 37,732
Other reserves HinfEE 22 128,334 74,209 212,117 202,236
Retained earnings RE &
- Proposed dividends —ERE 39,918 34,121 39,918 34,121
- Other —Efh 462,131 390,068 5,658 10,467
668,502 536,130 295,812 284,556
Minority interests DEURRER 40,157 33,327 - -
Total equity B#RET 708,659 569,457 295,812 284,556

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
—Fo¥iid
Chairman

FE

YUEN YEE SAIl, SIMON
R T AR

Joint Deputy Chairman
bEEI L

The notes on pa/?/es 47 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement
,%T» Eﬁn%‘%

For the year ended 31 March 2008 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BE_ZTNFZA=ZT-"RLFEBRZEHAN  LWEBE)

Note 2008 2007
B 5 $’°000F T $'000F 7T
Revenue WA 23 1,616,485 1,678,402
Cost of sales $HE AR (1,250,782) (1,297,880)
Gross profit EAH 365,703 380,522
Other (losses)/gains — net Hth (B18) Mz —F5 24 (21,346) 1,962
Distribution and selling expenses DI REEE S H (26,096) (27,418)
General and administrative expenses — /& M ITH S (148,018) (143,252)
Operating profit 1 g A 25 170,243 211,814
Finance income BME WA 26 8,693 3,133
Finance costs BYE RN 26 (3,050) (5,975)
Profit before income tax PSR & 7 175,886 208,972
Income tax expenses B R 27 (24,593) (33,620)
Profit for the year NEE R 151,293 175,352
Attributable to: 5B
Equity holders of the Company RARIREREA 28 138,226 159,487
Minority interests DHAR R = 13,067 15,865
151,293 175,352
Earnings per share for profit FAHBARNFIRE
attributable to the equity holders BAAZmFH
of the Company during the year BREAF 29
- Basic (HK cents) — &R (B 36.3 42 4
- Diluted (HK cents) —#5E (Bl) 34.3 41.0
Dividends 8] 30 58,977 45,413

The notes on pages 47 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A ICRNE 4 A B 3R

For the year ended 31 March 2008 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BE_ZTZNFZA=ZT-ALFE(KRAZBHHAI  WEBHE)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

GRRERARREREA
Share Other Retained Minority
capital reserves earnings interest Total
Note e Afthikte REBN DURFER @t

fitit $000T 7T $:000T 7T $000T 7T $000T 7T $000T 7

At 1 April 2006 RIEEXENA-H 37,502 67,847 294,820 20,063 420,232
Currency translation differences ERER 22 - 3,588 - 339 3,927
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale 4 H £81 7%

financial assets AEsnVEEE 2 - 241 - - 241
Profit for the year FERF - - 159,487 15,865 175,352

Total recognised income for the year ~ HZ-ZT+F=F

ended 31 March 2007 =+-ALFE
BRI N - 3,829 159,487 16,204 179,520
Employee share option scheme: [EERREE
- value of employee services -EERKZEE 22 - 177 - - 177
- proceeds from shares issued upon  —{TEEEREMEST
exercise of share options RizFEHE 22 230 2,356 - - 2,586
Dividends paid BEXfRRE - - (30,118) (2,940) (33,058)
At 31 March 2007 RZEZtE=F=1-H 37,132 74,209 424,189 33,327 569,457
Currency translation differences ERERE 22 - 37,095 - 1,295 38,390
Release of reserve upon disposal of A E R BT ERF
avallable-for-sale financial assets AEREREE 2 - 150 - - 150
Profit for the year EREN - - 138,226 13,067 151,203
Total recognised income for the BE-ZT\E=R
year ended 31 March 2008 =t+-BIFEEER
PLON - 37,245 138,226 14,362 189,833
Employee share option scheme: [EERREE
- value of employee services -EEREBEE 22 - 5,884 - - 5,884
- proceeds from shares issued upon  —{TREEEMREMEST
exercise of share options Btz FEHE 22 387 3,997 - - 4,384
Appropriation of statutory reserve EERBDIK - 6,999 (6,999) - -
Dividends paid BXARE - - (53,367) (7,532) (60,899)
At 31 March 2008 R-BENE=A=1-H 38,119 128,334 502,049 40,157 708,659

The notes on pages 47 to 122 are an integjal part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
)i‘/j_;/\fﬁl:_&‘{”.l%%

For the year ended 31 March 2008 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BE_ZTNFZA=ZT-"RLFEBRZEHAN  LWEBE)

Note 2008 2007
i &E $'000F 1t $000F T
Cash flows from operating activities BETHRETE
Cash generated from operations LEEY R 32(a) 312,029 205,379
Interest paid BRFIE (3,050) (5,975)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENAEBREHR (28,092) (11,906)
Mainland China enterprise income tax paid ERHREBACEREH (4,015) (1,504)
Net cash generated from operating activities LEEYREFE 276,872 185,094
Cash flows from investing activities RETHRERE
Interest received BIFIE 8,693 3,133
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BADE  BERZE (19,532) (52,719)
Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights BAMEHR B RAE - (327)
Increase in non-current deposits FREIRSEM (14,627) -
Purchase of other financial assets at fair value BARLTETAERN
through profit or loss EiaE (171,137) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME
plant and equipment BE REEMETE 228 359
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEARNENBEE
financial assets FiSE0E 3,964 3,100
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets HERATEAER
at fair value through profit or loss NEMHBEEMSE 131,730 2573
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits BERRIERRD/ (Em) 2,132 (2,132)
Net cash used in investing activities REEYMARSEE (58,549) (46,013)
Cash flows from financing activities BETHRLRE 32(b)
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options A BRENZIRG 4,384 2,586
Dividends paid to minority shareholders of BENWBAR %4
subsidiaries PEREZRE (7,532) (2,940)
Dividends paid ERRE (53,367) (30,118)
New bank loans MERERRITER 26,096 260,612
Repayment of bank loans EBERTER (44,423) (274,299)
Net cash used in financing activities HEEHMARLTE (74,842) (44,159)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re LR eSEBRENTE 143,481 95,822
Exchange differences BRLES 23,802 (2,866)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ~ £¥3i4 RELSEER 158,310 65,354
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FERRELBEEMEER 325,593 158,310

The notes on pages 47 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

General information

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the design, manufacture, marketing and trading of electro-
acoustic products, accessories and other electronic products
and property holding.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Argyle
House, 41A Cedar Avenue, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
3 July 2008.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B i & KR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations

that are effective in current year

HKFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”,
and the complementary amendment to HKAS 1,
“Presentation of financial statements — Capital
disclosures”, introduces new disclosures relating
to financial instruments and does not have
any impact on the classification and valuation
of the Group’s financial instruments, or the
disclosures relating to taxation and trade and
other payables;

HK(IFRIC) — Int 8, “Scope of HKFRS 2"
requires consideration of transactions involving
the issuance of equity instruments, where the
identifiable consideration received is less than the
fair value of the equity instruments issued in order
to establish whether or not they fall within the
scope of HKFRS 2. This standard does not have
any impact on the Group’s financial statements
as there are no such transaction;

HK(IFRIC) — Int 10, “Interim Financial Reporting
and Impairment”, prohibits the impairment losses
recognised in an interim period on goodwill
investments in equity instruments and investments
in financial assets carried at cost to be reversed at
a subsequent balance sheet date. This standard
does not have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements; and

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11, “HKFRS 2 - Group and
Treasury Share Transactions”, provides guidance
on whether share-based transactions involving
treasury shares or involving Group entities (for
example, options over a parent’s share) should
be accounted for as equity-settled or cash-
settled share-based payment transactions in the
stand-alone accounts of the parent and group
companies. This interpretation has no material
impact on the Group’s accounting policies as the
Group’s existing accounting policy on share-based
transactions comply with this interpretation.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Standards and interpretations effective in

(c)

current year but not relevant for the Group’s
operations

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 “Re-assessment of Embedded
Derivatives”.

Standards, amendments and interpretations
that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations have been published but are not
effective for current year and have not been early
adopted:

HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial
Statements” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009). HKAS 1
(Revised) requires all owner changes in equity to
be presented in a statement of changes in equity.
All comprehensive income is presented in one
statement of comprehensive income or in two
statements (a separate income statement and a
statement of comprehensive income). It requires
presenting a statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period in
a complete set of financial statements when there
are retrospective adjustments or reclassification
adjustments. However, it does not change the
recognition, measurement or disclosure of specific
transactions and other events required by other
HKFRSs. The Group will apply HKAS 1 (Revised)
from 1 April 2009. The Group is in the process
of assessing their impact on the Group’s results
and financial position;

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B i & KR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations

that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 23 (Revised), “Borrowing Costs” (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009). The amendment requires an entity to
capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset (one that takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for use or sale) as part
of the cost of that asset. The option of immediately
expensing those borrowing costs will be removed.
The Group will apply HKAS 23 (Amended) from
1 April 2009, but it is not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements;

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 (Amendments) “Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation” (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2009). The amendments
require some puttable financial instruments and
some financial instruments that impose on the
entity an obligation to deliver to another party a
pro rata share of the net assets of the entity only
on liquidation to be classified as equity. The Group
is in the process of assessing their impact on the
Group’s results and financial position;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B R &K GE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 EXEFBEME %)

(Continued)

21 RBEEE(Z)
K4 HXEEF YN FEE

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations (c)

that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements” (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009). The
amendment requires non-controlling interests
(i.e. minority interests) to be presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity of the owners
of the parent. Total comprehensive income must
be attributed to the owners of the parent and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. Changes in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in the loss of
control are accounted for within equity. When
control of a subsidiary is lost, the assets and
liabilities and related equity components of the
former subsidiary are derecognised. Any gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary is measured at
its fair value at the date when control is lost. The
Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised) from 1 April
2010. The Group is in the process of assessing
their impact on the Group’s results and financial
position;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B & KR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations

that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) “Share-based Payment
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations” (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009). The amendment clarifies the definition of
“vesting conditions” and specifies the accounting
treatment of “cancellations” by the counterparty
to a share-based payment arrangement. Vesting
conditions are service conditions (which require
a counterparty to complete a specified period
of service) and performance conditions (which
require a specified period of service and specified
performance targets to be met) only. All “non-
vesting conditions” and vesting conditions
that are market conditions shall be taken into
account when estimating the fair value of the
equity instruments granted. All cancellations are
accounted for as an acceleration of vesting and
the amount that would otherwise have been
recognised over the remainder of the vesting
period is recognised immediately. The Group will
apply HKFRS 2 Amendment from 1 April 2009, but
it is not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I B R & KT

2 EXRETBEMESR)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

21 RBEEE(Z)
K& N HXEEFYNFEE

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations (c)

that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”
(effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009). The amendment may bring
more transactions into acquisition accounting as
combinations by contract alone and combinations
of mutual entities are brought into the scope of
the standard and the definition of a business
has been amended slightly. It now states that
the elements are ‘capable of being conducted’
rather than ‘are conducted and managed’. It
requires considerations (including contingent
consideration), each identifiable asset and
liability to be measured at its acquisition-date fair
value, except leases and insurance contracts,
reacquired right, indemnification assets as well
as some assets and liabilities required to be
measured in accordance with other HKFRSs.
They are income taxes, employee benefits,
share-based payment and non current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations. Any
non-controlling interest in an acquiree is measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
identifiable assets. The Group will apply HKFRS
3 (Revised) from 1 January 2010. The Group is
in the process of assessing their impact on the
Group’s results and financial position;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B i & KR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments” (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009). HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14 and aligns
segment reporting with the requirements of the US
standard SFAS 131, ‘Disclosures about segments
of an enterprise and related information’. The
new standard requires a ‘management approach’,
under which segment information is presented on
the same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. The Group will apply HKFRS 8 from
1 April 2009. The expected impact is still being
assessed in detail by management, but it appears
likely that the number of reportable segments,
as well as the manner in which the segments
are reported, will change in a manner that is
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker; and

The following interpretations have not yet
been effective and not relevant to the Group
operations

HK(FRIC) — Int 12, “Service Concession
Arrangements” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2008) applies
to contractual arrangements whereby a private
sector operator participates in the development,
financing, operation and maintenance of
infrastructure for public sector services. HK(IFRIC) —
Int 12 is not relevant to the Group’s operations
because none of the Group’s companies provide
for public sector services; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements

LU

2 EXRETBEMESR)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

21 RBEEE(Z)
UTREBYREMBEEKE

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d) The following interpretations have not yet (d)

been effective and not relevant to the Group
operations (continued)

HK(FRIC) — Int 13, “Customer Loyalty
Programmes” (effective forannual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2008) clarifies that where goods
or services are sold together with a customer
loyalty incentive (for example, loyalty points or
free products), the arrangement is a multiple-
element arrangement and the consideration
receivable from the customer is allocated between
the components of the arrangement using fair
values. HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 is not relevant to the
Group’s operations because none of the Group’s
companies operate any loyalty programmes.

HK(FRIC) — Int 14, “HKAS 19 - The Limit
on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction” (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008). HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 provides guidance on
assessing the limit in HKAS 19 on the amount of
the surplus that can be recognised as an asset.
It also explains how the pension asset or liability
maybe affected by a statutory or contractual
minimum funding requirement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B & KR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective
of the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary in the consolidated
financial statements, to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (Note 2.8). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interests as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals to minority
interests result in gains and losses for the Group
that are recorded in the consolidated income
statement. Purchases from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary.

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other business segments. A geographical segment
is engaged in providing products or services within
a particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of
segments operating in other economic environments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B & KR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available for sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences are recognised in income
statement and other changes in carrying amount
are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such
as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale, are included in the
available-for-sale reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

LU

2 EXRETBEMESR)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 HNEBRE(E)
(c) FE LA

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement presented are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
rate is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B & KR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment loss. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
in the income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost less residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Buildings 2.5% to 8'/3%
Machinery and moulds 10% to 30%
Furniture and equipment 20% to 30%
Motor vehicles 30%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with carrying amount and
are recognised within other gains-net, in the income
statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.6

2.7

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents factories and
office buildings under construction; and machinery
and equipment pending installation. It is stated at
cost less accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes
the original cost of land, construction expenditures
incurred, machinery and related installation costs, and
other costs attributable to the construction of the
buildings and installation of machinery and equipment.
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction-
in-progress until the construction work is completed
and ready for intended use.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the companies in the consolidated group, is classified
as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.

Land held under operating leases is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest
of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it was a finance
lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
These valuations are performed in accordance with
the guidance issued by the International Valuation
Standards Committee. These valuations are reviewed
annually by external valuers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B & KR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases
in the light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the
property. Some of those outflows are recognised as a
liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect of
land classified as investment property; others, including
contingent rent payments, are not recognised in the
financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income
statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses
a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
the income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
been available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested at least annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
designated at fair value through profit or loss when
they contain one or more embedded derivatives
significantly which modify the cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

WE B i & KR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Loans and receivables

(c)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date, which are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables are classified as trade
and other receivables in the balance sheet (Note
2.12).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance
sheet date.

Regular way purchases and sales of investments
are recognised on the date of trade — the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Investments are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity investments are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B R & B GE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 EAXEFBEME %)

(Continued)

29 MBEEE)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category, are presented in
the income statement within “other gains” in the
period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. The
translation differences are recognised in income
statement, and other changes in carrying amount
are recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value
of monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as “gains and losses from investment
securities”. Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the income statement when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset
is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Group
establishes fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis,
and option pricing models making maximum use of
market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B & KR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the
case of equity securities classified as available for sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered as an indicator
that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the income
statement. Impairment testing of trade receivables is
described in Note 2.12.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged. At 31 March 2008, the Group did not
designate any derivatives as hedging instruments.

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are recognised immediately in the income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

211 EE

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises design costs, raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited in the income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability, including fees and commissions paid
to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by
regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 EXSFHBRXBE &)

(Continued)

2,16 BN AR ZE FT 1§ 80

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue

of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution plans in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. The schemes are generally funded through
payments to insurance companies or trustee-
administered funds, determined by periodic
actuarial calculations. A defined contribution plan
is a pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation

(c)

The Group operates a share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the options granted for the
employee services is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
vest. At each balance sheet date, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the income
statement with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable
to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when the related
risks and rewards of ownership of the products
delivered have passed to the customers.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B R & B GE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 ZEXEFBEME %)

(Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued) 220 K AFERR (&)

(c) Management fees and handling income

Management fees and handling income are
recognised when the relevant services are
rendered.

(d) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the relevant leases.

2.21 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.22 Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a type of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instruments. The Group performs
a liability adequacy test at each balance sheet date
by comparing its net liability regarding the financial
guarantee with the amount that would be required if
the financial guarantee were to result in a present legal
or constructive obligation. If the liability is less than its
present legal or constructive obligation amount, the
entire difference is recognised in the income statement.
During the year, no provision has been made in the
financial statements for the financial guarantees.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the year in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk and cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management policy focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

(a) Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong
and Mainland China with transactions
mainly settled in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and US dollars (“USD”).
The Group is mainly exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities to
which they relate.

The Group entered into foreign currency
forward contracts to manage such exposure.
The net fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts entered by the Group
for managing the risk relating to monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
at 31 March 2008 was HK$4,041,000 and
has been recognised as derivative financial
instruments.

At 31 March 2008, if HKD/USD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$3,662,000 (2007: HK$
2,017,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of RMB-denominated monetary assets and
liabilities and gains/losses from foreign
exchange forward contracts.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(0

(it

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2008, if USD had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against HKD with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$100,000 (2007: nil) lower/higher, as a
result of fair value gains/losses on RMB
denominated currency linked (USD/HKD)
structured deposits, which was recognised
as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss.

Price risk

The Group’s investment funds and unit trusts
are susceptible to market price risk arising
from uncertainties about future prices of
those financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss. Management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risk profiles.
Management considered that the exposure
of investment funds and unit trusts to price
risk is not significant.

Fair value of the structured deposits are
affected by the foreign exchange risk which
was discussed under 3.1(a)(i) above.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets except for certain bank
deposits, the Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
bank borrowings. The Group will review
whether bank loans bearing fixed or floating
rates should be drawn from time to time
with reference to the trend of changes in
interest rates.

The Group’s borrowings were primarily at
fixed rates which expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group generally
does not use financial derivatives to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk.

At 31 March 2008, the Group had borrowings
of HK$5,915,000 in floating-to-fixed interest
rate swaps arrangement. Such interest rate
swaps have the economic effect of converting
borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates.
The Group raises long-term borrowings at
floating rates and swaps them into fixed
rates that are lower than those available if
the Group borrowed at fixed rates directly.
Under the interest rate swaps, the Group
agrees with other parties to exchange, at
specified intervals (monthly), the difference
between fixed contract rates and floating-
rate interest amounts calculated by reference
to the agreed notional principal amounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B R & B GE

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 BERAKRER#E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEAKREE (&)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THEREE)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) MERERFEFEME
(Continued) b (&)

At 31 March 2008, the post-tax profit of
the Group would have been approximately
HK$240,000 lower/higher (2007: HK$
408,000) if the market interest rates had
increased/decreased by 100 basis points
with all other variables held constant.

(b) Credit risk

The carrying amounts of the financial assets,
including trade and other receivables, cash and
bank deposits, derivative financial instruments and
financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause financial loss to
the Group.

At 31 March 2008, the Company had provided
guarantees in respect of banking facilities of its
subsidiaries. Credit risk relating to those guarantees
amounted to approximately HK$435,181,000
(2007: HK$260,660,000), which represented the
notional amounts of such guarantees.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has put
in place policies to ensure that sales of products
are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. The Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers and takes appropriate
follow-up actions to recover overdue debts.

The Group’s historical experience in collection of
trade and other receivables falls within the recorded
allowances and the Directors are of the opinion
that adequate provision for uncollectible trade
receivables has been made in the consolidated
financial statements.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

At 31 March 2008 and 2007, substantially all
cash and bank deposits are placed with major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong and
Mainland China; all derivative financial instruments
and financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss are also entered into with those financial
institutions, which management believes are of
high credit quality. Management does not expect
any losses arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and
the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity
through the maintenance of prudent ratio regarding
to the liquidity structure of the overall assets,
liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group.
The Group also maintains a healthy level of liquid
assets and committed banking facilities to ensure
the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet any
unexpected and material cash requirements in the
ordinary course of business. At 31 March 2008, the
Group has unutilised committed banking facilities
of HK$355,000,000 (2007: HK$277,000,000).

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERKREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEAKREE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) Z“BELRRE(E)
Within Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and>5 years Total
—£RK —EBRE MEZRE @t
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
As at 31 March 2008 R-ZEN\F=A=+-H
Trade and other payables FEfTE N H b FE( X 240,147 - - 240,147
Bank borrowings, secured $R{TIEE - B iEIH 30,416 2,730 455 33,601
Derivative financial THESRT AFE
instruments, net 4,041 - - 4,041
Interest payables FERTFIE 1,031 162 23 1,216
Total 5 275,635 2,892 478 279,005
As at 31 March 2007 R-ZEZEtE=A=+-H
Trade and other payables FEfE Z b e 7% 276,221 - - 276,221
Bank borrowings, secured $R{T{EE » BHEF 43,279 2,730 3,185 49,194
Derivative financial LRI AFE
instruments, net 1,055 - - 1,055
Interest payables FERTFIE 1,271 331 378 1,980
Total @it 321,826 3,061 3,563 328,450

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other shareholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total equity,
including share capital, other reserves and retained
earnings.

3.2 EXEKBER

AEBEREER  URESE
BRENFERLE  RERRERREM
BROFAEARKRDR  @#F&E
BARGERBIAREEARKA -
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price; the appropriate
quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current
ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such as
estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The
fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange market rates at
the balance sheet date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are reasonable approximation
of their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Criticalaccounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(@) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

(b) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, and related depreciation charge for its
property, plant and equipment. The estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives. It will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could
result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore
depreciation expense in future periods.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of trade receivables. Provisions are applied to bills
receivable and accounts receivable where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of trade receivables and impairment is recognised in
the year in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimated provision for inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Provisions are recognised where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
inventories may not be realised. The identification of
provision requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and provision for inventories in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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5 Segment information

Primary segment

An analysis by business segment is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

Wh w5 & M AR

5 HEBEM
ERDE
BREGED 2o mT:

Communication Multimedia Electro-acoustic Electronic products,

Audio products products products parts accessories and others Elimination Total

0 ERER SREER 834 78R EARER s &5
2008 2007 2008 200 2008 2007 2008 200 2008 207 2008 2007 2008 20
$000F7  S000Fm  $000Fm  SO0Fm S0t So0Fr  So0Fm  S00Tm  $000Fr  S00Fm  $00Fm  SU0Fm  S0w0FRm  S00FR
Total segment revenve  SERAEE 454,184 41256 507,505 604,708 148,448 144740 39,507 93983 466,841 13,745 - - 1616485 1678402
Interseqment revenue  ASEAA - - - - - - - - M3/ Aa8L (203800)  (87T5864) - -
RevenieTumover 40\ /4 58 454,184 421,256 507,505 604,708 148,448 144740 39,507 93,953 740,641 789609 (213800)  (375864) 1,616,485 1678402
Segment results PEE 91,412 93430 46,111 56,058 14072 19734 6,078 16,202 36,216 12483 - - 195,449 21817

Unalocated FAR

copoate expenses AR (3860)  (16.025)
Other loses)gans ~ 2ft (B2) /

-ngt Wi- 5% (21,346) 1962
Financ income BRMA 8,693 3133
Finance costs g [3050)  (5979)
Inoome tax expenses AL (24598) (3360
Poftfortheyear ~ ZEREA 151208 1753
Otberinformation £ &#

Assets: &
Segment assels HHAE 216,614 231,688 309,089 332,585 90,410 79,606 24,061 51,673 264323 21567 - - 984,497 923109
Unalocated assels ~ KAREE 32,260 13477
1,016,757 936,586
Liabies: A
Segment latiiies ~ ABEE 68,721 66,963 76,79 99% 22463 236% 5078 15,381 10,642 67,733 - - 244605 204,767
Unellocated fabiites ~ £AE&(E 63,493 9362
308,09 367,129
Capital evpendires BBt 10,832 10921 12,104 16,675 3,540 3752 942 243 6,741 20263 - - 34,159 53,046
Depreciation g 12140 9203 13,565 13,209 3,068 3161 1,056 2,053 14840 12,35 - - 45,569 39,961
Amortisaion of BiiE
easehold fand THRLH
adlnduserights g 180 28 20 29 5 I 16 i 106 100 - - 52 %5

F I, 2007-08

Hot
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W B ik & KR

5 Segment information (Continued) 5 oIERE)
Secondary segment REDE
Revenue and results by geographical location are determined BitRE D2 WA RFEEFEZUNEYN
mainly on the basis of the location where merchandise EHEETE o  BHEREI D 2T
is delivered. An analysis by geographical location is as
follows:
North America Asia Pacific
b M EAE
Asian Countries
United States of America Canada Europe (other than Mainland China)  Mainland China Others Total
s EE A A5 2
ES=] mEXR BOM MER FEE R Hit B
208 2007 2008 2007 208 A7 A8 207 A8 007 A8 N07 08 207
$000F7 $000F7 $000F7 $000Fx $000F7 $000FT $000Fx $000FE $000Fm $000F7 $000Frm $000FT $000F7  $000FT
Reenweumower A/A2E 420086 404650 4851 4000 200456 40085 32430 16371 BBEI0 4744 42882 L4GT 1616485 1678400
Segmentresuls HHEE 51055 54041 ST 583 3519 57155 38985 42050 GAS19  GRI81 5184 6063 195449 027877

The Group has business operations in Mainland China REERFPRHBAREEHELEHE
and Hong Kong. An analysis by geographical location is o BHEE D 2 T T
as follows:
Mainland China Hong Kong Total
22 A B8 #zE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
$000Fx $000FT $000F;x  $000FT  $000F7  $000FIC
Assets BE 649,996 602,401 366,761 334,185 1,016,757 936,586
Capital expenditures EAS 34,033 52,073 126 973 34,159 53,046

The assets and capital expenditures are allocated based on

where the assets are located.

84 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHBI - ABEEFE)

6 Property, plant and equipment 6 WYX BERRE
Group
r5E
Construction- Machinery Furniture
in- and and Motor
Buildings progress moulds equipment vehicles Total
BF ERIE BHRER FAREH RE a5
$000F 7T $000F 7T $000F 7T $000F T $000F7 $000F 7
Year ended HEZE23t%
31 March 2007 ZA=THLEE
Opening net book amount FAIEME F/E 100,606 16,058 51,521 32,52 2,505 204,116
Addtions ) 826 5179 32,420 13,072 1222 52,719
Disposals e - - ) (34) - (126)
Depreciation charge nERx (3,554) - (22,443) (12,606) (1,379) (30,981)
Transfer g% 20,842 21,039 - 197 . .
Bxchange differences  EXEE 4,759 274 1,536 1333 3% 7987
Closing net book amount A FE 123479 1372 62,942 34,488 2,384 224,665
At 31 March 2007 RZBBLEZA=1-A
Cost A 154,070 1372 254,623 92,062 13508 515,633
Accumulated depreciation £ (30,591) - (191,681) (57,574) (11,122 (290,968)
Net book amount BEAE 123479 1372 62,942 34,488 2,384 224,665
Year ended HEZZEIN%
31 March 2008 ZAZT-BLEE
Opening net book amount FANEEF/E 123479 1,372 62,042 34,488 2,384 294,665
Additions #E 298 1,869 11,023 5,809 533 19,532
Disposals e - - (6) (12) @ (22)
Depreciation charge nERx (4,404) - (26,122) (13,557) (1,486) (45,569)
Transfer £ - (3,284) 3 3,251 - -
Exchange differences EREE 10,186 [] 2,982 2,703 87 16,001
Closing net book amount  FAEEF(E 129,559 - 50,852 32,682 1,514 214,607
At 31 March 2008 RZEENFZA=1-A
Cost A 164,554 - 268,655 103,813 14,122 551,144
Acoumulated depreciation  23f#E (34,995) - (217,803) (711,131) (12,608) (336,537)
Net book amount SEFE 129,559 - 50,852 32,682 1,514 214,607
Depreciation expense of HK$34,509,000 (2007: T & 51 34,509,000 L ( Z T FT +
HK$30,048,000) has been included in cost of sales and F: 30,048,000?\%75) E_%W%\i@ﬁ%%ﬁ%
HK$11,060,000 (2007: HK$9,933,000) in general and K 511,060,000/ T( = 2 & + &

o 9,933,000/ 7L )X — MR RITH X °
administrative expenses.

ot
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBI - AIBEEFTE)

6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 6 ME- - BRERIKESE)
At 31 March 2008, the net book value of property, plant and RZZZENF=A=+—8 W% &
equipment being pledged as security for the Group’s banking ERRBZRFEETER  EALKE
facilities amounted to approximately HK$50,421,000 (2007: BIEN 15 4750,421,000/8 T( ZE T+ F:
HK$49,296,000). 49,296,000/ 7T ) IR1TRLE 2 WA M -
7 Investment properties 7 BREYE
Group
AEE
2008 2007
$’000F T $'000F 7T
Beginning of the year F7] 4,360 4,180
Fair value gains N ER = 860 180
End of the year FR 5,220 4,360
The investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2008 RZZZENF=ZA=1+—80 KEWE
by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent B EXEEG BRI EMF TR =6
professional qualified valuer. Valuations were based on BRAREITER - MEDIRENER
current prices in an active market. Mg 2 RITERETT
The Group’s interests in investment properties at their net AEBRZBEEME RO FE  ES
book values are analysed as follows: DT
2008 2007
$°000F T $000F T

Hong Kong — held on leases BE-UTFRE
between 10 to 50 years A+ FHNER 5,220 4,360

86 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

8 Leasehold land and land use rights

(R =B A -

B EE)

8 HELHRIFERE

Group

REE
2008 2007
$’000F 7T $'000F 7T
Beginning of the year F7) 21,198 21,156
Additions BN - 327

Amortisation of prepaid BHTa gAY

operating lease payment IE (562) (725)
Exchange differences e N =58 891 440
End of the year FIR 21,527 21,198

At 31 March 2008, the net book value of leasehold land and
land use rights pledged as security for the Group’s banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$4,660,000 (2007:

HIK$4,289,000).

R-BZNE=A=+—08 HEt
MItEREZREFED FEE
BN & B B8 #494,660,0008 T ( — &
T4 4,289,000 L) IRITRLE 2

A an o

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net

AEENHE LR+ ERE 2 #a
RENEEROFEAR LR R EE

book value are analysed as follows: mAONTR:
2008 2007
$’°000F T $'000F 7T
Hong Kong — held on leases BB -UTFEZE

between 10 to 50 years A+FHRNES 11,263 11,650

Mainland China — held on leases A A—RTFE
between 10 to 50 years A+FRNER 10,264 9,648
21,527 21,198

9 Non-current deposits 9 ¥RBRE

Non-current deposits represent deposits paid for the
acquisition of land use rights.

FERBIREEWIE L EREM N Z
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BE 5 3R M
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBO - ABEEFE)

10 Available-for-sale financial assets

10 IRHEMBEE

Group
wEE
2008 2007
$°000F 7T $000F T
Beginning of the year F7] 3,963 7,215
Disposal HE (4,113) (3,1083)
Provision for impairment B B - (390)
Fair value gain transferred EERERE N TE
to equity (Note 22) W (Btat22) - 241
Release of reserve upon HERHHENKEE
disposal of available-for-sale BrETARRR ~ R
financial assets (Note 22) (Btet22) 150 -
End of the year FR - 3,963

At 31 March 2007, the Group’s available-for-sale financial
assets primarily represented range notes. The fair values of
these range notes were based on their current bid price in
an active market provided by counterparties.

11 Investment in and amounts due from
subsidiaries

a) Investment in subsidiaries

11

RIZBZBLF=A=+—0 F~EHEZT
HEEWBEETRIERERE - ZFK
BEREBZ A HEDNREBERZH T REE
REERRNEERMISZZEAEME

BB D RIRE R EWRIE

a) RMBARZERE

Company
KA F
2008 2007
$’000F T $'000F 7T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE M RRD A ANE I BR 139,000 139,000

The underlying value of the investment in subsidiaries
is, in the opinion of the Company’s directors, not less
than the carrying value at 31 March 2008.

b) Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free, and repayable on demand. The balance
included an amount of HK$9,900,000 which was
denominated in US dollars. The remaining were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and in Renminbi.

88 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Investment in and amounts due from

subsidiaries (Continued)

c)

Principal subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

31 March 2008:

Notes to the Financial Statements

WE B ik & K

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(R =B A -

B E)

11 B AR BREREWVRIRIE (&)

c) TEMEBAF

TR

—EENF=ZA=+—H

ZETEMBARF

Place of
incorporation/
Principal place Particulars Interest
of operation of issued held (iv)
Name sy Principal activities share capital ks
A8 TELEHH TEEH ERITRARFE (iv)
Charter Media Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and HK$3 100%
REBRAF B0 trading of electro-acoustic 3BT
products and accessories
REBRREEEFERREN
Charter Media (Dongguan) Mainland China Manufacture of electro-acoustic ~ HK$132,790,930 100%
Company Limited () BB A products and accessories 132,790,930 7T
HE (R%) EFARDA) SUEBBERREMN
Dongguan Full Rich Mainland China Manufacture and trading of HK$5,000,000 100%
Precision Metal Product BB A precision metal parts 5,000,000 7
Company Limited () HEREERTOORN
RERRTIESHEM
BRRE ()
Fujikon Acoustics (Suzhou) Mainland China Manufacture and trading of US$2,250,000 100%
Limited (j(v) HEIE A electro-acoustic accessories 2,250,000 7T
ELREE (M) HERBEETRRMN
BRREWY)
Fujikon Electrical Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$3 100%
ETREXERAR B0 REER 3BT
Fujikon Europe GmbH Germany Trading of electro-acoustic EUR 25,000 100%
Ze products and accessories 25,0008 7T
BESEEMREMN
ETSEXEZERABRLA
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BE 5 3R M
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBO - ABEEFE)

Investment in and amounts due from
subsidiaries (Continued)

Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

11 B AR BRERERRE (&)

c) EEMBLIT(E)

Place of
incorporation/
Principal place Particulars Interest
of operation of issued held (iv)
Name M Principal activities share capital s £
A8 TELEHH TEXK ERITRAFE (iv)
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited  British Virgin Islands  Investment holding US$3,000 100%
RBRAHE RAER 3,000% 7T
Fujikon Industrial Company Hong Kong Design, manufacture, Class A -
Limited e marketing and trading (non-voting)(ii)
ETREXBRAA of electro-acoustic HK$2,400,000
products and accessories AR
Rt BE R (RIRZTHE) (1i)
BEESRERNEN 2,400,0007 70
Class B 100%
(voting)(ii)
HK$600,000
B
(BRZHE) (i)
600,000/ 7T
Fujikon International Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and HK$3 100%
ETRERERAF B trading of transformers IBIL
and power adaptors
REAERREBEZFS
RENBER
Fujikon Packing Material Hong Kong Manufacture and trading HK$10,000 51%
Company Limited e of packaging materials 10,0007 ¢
BIRAEMHAERAF HWERBEARDH
Fujikon Precision Metal Hong Kong Investment holding and HK$10,000 100%
Products Limited e manufacture and trading of 10,0007 7T
EIERERLERER LA precision metal parts
RERERREER
BERTISEN
Fujikon Technology Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$100,000 100%
BLERRERAR Eik RAER 100,000 7T

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBI - ABEFE)

11 Investment in and amounts due from 11 B ARIKRENREWFIE(Z)

subsidiaries (Continued)

c) Principal subsidiaries (Continued) c) EEMBLAT(E)
Place of
incorporation/
Principal place Particulars Interest
of operation of issued held (iv)
Name M Principal activities share capital s
A8 TELEHH TEEH ERTRAFE (iv)
Full-Sound (Dongguan) Electric  Mainland China Manufacture and trading of HK$5,000,000 100%
Products Limited () HEIE A electro-acoustic products 5,000,000/ 7T
B2 (RR) S8kH and accessories
BRRE) NEREESREMRE T
Keen Motion Limited Hong Kong Provision of management services ~ HK$2 100%
ERBRAF BB REEEERE 28T
Landbo Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$100 100%
UREB AT BB NERA 10077T
Maxchief Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and trading HK$150 100%
EFEERAR &k of electro-acoustic products 150/87T
and accessories
REERREBSRER RN
Ningbo Fusion Electrical Mainland China Manufacture and trading of PVC ~ US$2,500,000 70%
Material Company Limited (i) & EIEI A beads, wires and cables 2,500,000 7T
EREREEMRERRA) SEREERI LGB
Profits (Dongguan) Electric Mainland China Manufacture and trading HK$5,384,228 100%
Products Company Limited (i) & EIEI A of transformers and 5,384,228/5 7L
BE (Fx) E824 power adaptors
BRATF) NEREEZFER
EWIEE
Score Merit Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$2 100%
HERBRAT BB REZK 28T
Smart Success Management British Virgin Islands  Investment holding Us$100 100%
Limited EBRAHE REER 100%7T
RREIREERR Mainland China Dormant HK$ 15,150,000 100%
BRRE) HEIE A EmEH 15,150,000 70
ETSEXEZERABRLA
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(R =B A -

WA B

11 Investment in and amounts due from
subsidiaries (Continued)

c) Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

0

(i

(i)

(iv)

Charter Media (Dongguan) Company Limited, Profits
(Dongguan) Electric Products Company Limited, Fujikon
Acoustics (Suzhou) Limited, Full-Sound (Dongguan)
Electrical Products Limited, Dongguan Full Rich Precision
Metal Product Company Limited and £+ 5%
BRI AR AT are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in Mainland China to be operated for 15
years up to May 2009, 12 years up to January 2012,
50 years up to March 2051, 12 years up to April 2014,
12 years up to October 2016 and 20 years up to June
2027, respectively.

Ningbo Fusion Electrical Material Company Limited is a
sino-foreign equity joint venture established in Mainland
China to be operated for 15 years up to May 2015.

Holders of Class A (non-voting) shares have no voting
rights, are not entitled to dividends unless the net profit
of the company exceeds HK$900,000,000,000, and are
not entitled to any distribution upon winding up unless
a sum of HK$900,000,000,000 has been distributed by
the Company to holders of Class B (voting) shares.

The shares of Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited are held
directly by the Company. The shares of other subsidiaries
are held indirectly.

In April 2008, the directors approved the dissolution
of Fujikon Acoustics (Suzhou) Company Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary. Fuijkon Acoustic (Suzhou)
Company Limited has since discontinued its operation
and commenced de-registration process which involves
finalisation of taxation with the local tax authority, among
others.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue
at any time during the year ended 31 March 2008.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

11 B AR BRERERRIE (&)

c)

FE
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BE
FE

MEAE(#E)

PFR(EE)ETERRAR
(RE)ERZDBBERAA
BEEHMNBERAA
(RE)EXRERHBRAR -
EERERSERERAFK
EERITREEMEERAREA
RABEBAKIZINEEERS
¥ ZFLESRLETRSF
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ENEREEMBERABTRR
TEBAKIZFIIEGERE
gt E " -0Fnh
g

AR(ERER)IRDIFIAA
WEREERE TEZEERRK
B BREAXR DA M A E B
900,000,000,0005 J© * B # &
BRERESEADIR  BRIE
900,000,000,000/ 7T 2 KA LD
MARE DR FBR(BHRERE)
BDFEA -

Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited
ZROBARAEERE - Hit
MERRZROEEBERE -

R-ZZZNFUA  EFHER
H-—HzENBARELREE
(BM)ERRAl- Bt mEE
(BFM)BRAF B SR ELELFE
EBVRABCHBELTFE  BF
BEEEMHEERBEENRSE
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WE B i & K

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHERAN  UBEE)
Inventories 12 B8
Group
rEE
2008 2007
$’000F JT $'000F 7T
Raw materials R 65,669 91,645
Work-in-progress paa 47,092 59,596
Finished goods 2K o 51,077 69,964
163,838 221,205
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included ERAYLEERBENHEEKRKEAZEFE

in cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$910,978,000
(2007: HK$960,803,000). For the year ended 31 March
2008, the Group made a reversal of provision for inventories
impairment of approximately HK$1,105,000 (2007:
provision for inventories impairment of approximately
HK$15,828,000).

Trade and other receivables

The Group grants credit periods to customers ranging from
7 to 120 days. At 31 March 2008, trade receivables of
HK$149,332,000 (2007: HK$216,053,000) were neither past
due nor impaired. These related to a number of independent
customers for whom there was no relevant history of default.
Trade receivables that are less than three months past due
are not considered impaired except for customers which
are in unexpected difficult economic situations. At 31 march
2008 and 2007, other receivables are mainly placed with
counterparties with no history of default. The ageing analysis
of the trade receivables by past due date is as follows:

13

AN 4 /5910,978,00008 T ( — T E +
% : 960,803,000 L) - HEZZTE
NF=ZA=+—BILFE  AEBEEH
#91,105,0008 (T +F : T &
SR E B 4915,828,000/8 7T ) 2 TF &R
BEREERER -

JE W & 0 e L Ath BB R

KEBREITEI20BZ ZEHF R
F-RZZEENF=ZA=+—8 " ER
B 7149,332,0008 T( —EZT+F :
216,053,000/ 7t ) #f % & R R R (B ©
ZEFRIBES T W EMAB B ERL R
MBYREFHRE - BRI ETEBRENEE
REEZEFI  @EL RN =8 A 2R
BERUETREREBE R_EENFR=
TE+F=ZA=1+—H8 - HiEWFE
FTERBEBERER IR ZETT A
BHEA T HEY 2 B E R R AT 0
™

ot

TEREZERERAA
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W B & KR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBI - ABEEFTE)

13 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 13 EWERKHMERKRR ()
Group Company
REE ¥ /N
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000Ft $000F7t $000Fs  $000F7T
Current & B 149,332 216,053 - -
1 to 30 days 1HZE30H 26,977 23,970 - -
31 to 60 days 31HZ=60H 11,383 11,824 - -
61 to 90 days 61HZ=90H 6,724 5,979 - -
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 7,368 5,661 - -
201,784 263,487 - _
Less: Provision for o EUE R
impairment of BB
trade receivables (5,272) (4,619) - -
Trade receivables, net FEWE R - FEE 196,512 258,868 - -
Other receivables H gk 29,447 34,461 183 180
225,959 293,329 183 180

The carrying values of the Group’s trade receivables and
other receivables approximate their fair values.

There is concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the Group’s sales are concentrated on several
key customers. At 31 March 2008, trade receivables from
the five largest customers accounted for approximately
44.5% (2007: 60.5%) of the total trade receivables. The
Group’s approach of managing credit risk is disclosed in
Note 3.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

E RN ES
ASNELE

BBt
pui s
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D\ﬁ i&r

H A 8GR 2 BRE B

HRAREZHE %EPXE%Z%EEKE
FrBAEEREEREREER
P RZTBENF=ZA=1T—8" ?KE

AAEFZER
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%2 BRI EINIEE -
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13 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Grou

Notes to the Financial Statements

WE B i & K

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

p’s trade and other

receivable balances are denominated in the following

currencies:

(BR=EHBI - ABEFTE)

13 BRERK H A EWRK )

R 62 B W R L R MR A R BR T
BUATHERIIEK :

Group Company
REH RAFE]

2008 2007 2008 2007
$000F;t $000F7t $000Fix  $000F7T
Hong Kong dollars BT 25,439 35,573 183 180
Renminbi AR 106,207 114,962 = -
US dollars ETT 94,255 142,746 = -
Other currencies HEEr 58 48 = -
225,959 293,329 183 180

Movements in the provision forimpairment of trade receivables

AEBE(KNRQTE &) 2 EKRE TR E R

for the Group (the Company: Nil) are as follows: HEBMT

Group

rEE
2008 2007
$°000F T $'000F 7T
Beginning of the year F4 4,619 2,874
Provision for receivables impairment & U R B B4 1,179 2,656

Receivables written off i H AT Y]

as uncollectible 2 RIS (698) (925)
Exchange differences fEH =5 172 14
End of the year FR 5,272 4,619

The impairment provision made during the year has been
included in the general and administrative expenses in the

consolidated income statement.

FRELZRERBD T AGRARER
Z—REITBAXS -

Hot
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(R =B AL -

14

15

BB )

Derivative financial instruments

At 31 March 2008, derivative financial instruments mainly
represented foreign exchange forward contracts that are
not qualified for hedge accounting under the requirement
of HKAS 39 and the amounts are denominated in US
dollars.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign
exchange forward contracts at 31 March 2008 are
HK$143,986,000 (2007: HK$46,884,000). These foreign
exchange forward contracts held for trading are expected
to occur at various date during the next 12 months.

Other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

14

15

TTEESMTA
R-ZENF=ZA=+—0 {1428
TAXEBRIIEEREHORETES
STERIFBOFME - FHA YRGS
) ARSBEAETIIE -

MR-BENF=F=+—0 REIHE
REAEH 2 REREEH143,986,000
BIT(ZZTZT 4 :46,884,000/87T) °
ZERBEREE ZINERBANEHEER
KR+ @A RNEB BT -

BAVFEFARSNEMHMSE
BE

Group

KEH
2008 2007
$’°000F T $’000F 7T
Investment funds and unit trusts E&IRENETESD 8,155 7,238
Structured deposits EBEER 37,214 -
45,369 7,238

Structured deposits mainly represented currency (USD/HKD)
linked capital protected investments with notional amounts
of RMB30,000,000 and HK$4,000,000 and with maturity
dates on 30 July 2008 and 3 September 2010 respectively.
Management has the option of disposing the investment at
any time in the market.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

EBETREBEEEE (ExL,HBT)
BZIRATE  2ESEIFAAR
#30,000,0007T } 4,000,000/ 7T » I
DAR_EENFELA=ZFTHERZ=E—
TENAZHEIH - EREARERERT
BHEZERE -



15 Other financial assets at fair value through
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Notes to the Financial Statements

WE B i & K

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

profit or loss (Continued)

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
denominated in the following currencies:

(BR=EHBI - ABEFTE)

15 MR FPEFTARSHE M

BE )

mAFEFABENEBHEEEAT
SIE RSB

Group

AEH
2008 2007
$’°000F T $°000F 7T
Hong Kong dollars BT 4,246 -
Renminbi AR 32,968 -
US dollars ETT 8,155 7,238
45,369 7,238

The fair values of all investment funds, unit trusts and
structured deposits are based on their current bid prices in
an active market provided by counterparties.

Cash and bank deposits and pledged bank 16
deposits

IEEESKRE ERESMEBIETR
ZRFHERETRENERM S 2 E
HEAEBREEHE -

ReRBTAERRCERRST
R

Group Company
TEE AR

2008 2007 2008 2007
$000Ft $000F77L $000Fx $'000F 7T
Cash at bank and on hand RITFR KRB 139,103 90,049 439 1,255
Short-term bank deposits 5 EASRI TR K 186,490 68,261 - -
325,593 158,310 439 1,255
Pledged bank deposits BEFIRITIHER - 2,132 - -
Total ek 325,593 160,442 439 1,255

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was
approximately 2.5% per annum (2007: 3.5% per annum);
these deposits have an average maturity of 35 days (2007:
30 days).

CHIRITHEREBRFN RN AT F25E
2T LF GEISE) ZEHEK
FHEHEHB ABBH(ZZEZEF 30
A) o

Hot
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(BRBEHAN - LLBEERE)
16 Cash and bank deposits and pledged bank 16 RE€ KRR TERRKEEFRT
deposits (Continued) ER(E)
The following is included for the purposes of the cash flow TERIBERESMERMEA -
statement:
Group
AEH
2008 2007
$’000F 7T $°000F 7T
Cash at bank and on hand RITEREIRE 139,103 90,049
Short-term bank deposits 52 ERERITEK 186,490 68,261
325,593 158,310
Cash and bank deposits and pledged bank deposits are Re MRTHEREEEBRITFHAT
denominated in the following currencies: P B ER
Group Company
rEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
$’°000F 7t $000F7t  $000F T $'000F T
Hong Kong dollars BT 30,893 32,070 439 1,255
US dollars ETT 156,680 96,627 - -
Renminbi AR 136,561 31,436 - -
Other currencies HEw 1,459 309 = -
325,593 160,442 439 1,255

At 31 March 2008, approximately HK$136,561,000 (2007:
HK$31,436,000) of the Group’s cash and bank deposits were
denominated in Renminbi, which is not a freely convertible
currency in the international market and the repatriation of
which is subject to foreign exchange control regulations of

Mainland China.

At 31 March 2008, no bank deposits was pledged as security
for the Group’s banking facilities (2007: HK$2,132,000).

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

RZZEENF=ZRA=+— EI AEH
#3136,561,000% L( = T T + F -
31,436,000 70 ) 2 3 & RIR1TF R
AAREDIER - T AR IEEE TS
BERAByEE - ERAEHZHEE RN
b E HI LA PRl o
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R(ZZZTLF 2,182,000 7T) 2 1E
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHBI - ABEFTE)

17 Trade and other payables 17 ENERRHEMENSRK
At 31 March 2008, the ageing analysis of trade payables RZZZENGF=A=+—08 " KA HA
by past due date is as follows: FIH 2 EBAERZER>TAT
Group Company
rEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007

$000Ft $000F7t $000F  $000F7T

Current =4 107,976 114,009 - -
1 to 30 days 1HZE30H 16,790 42,466 - -
31 to 60 days 31HZ=60H 5,110 13,262 - -
61 to 90 days 61HZE=90H 3,518 6,668 - -
91 to 180 days 91H=180H 6,542 8,875 - -
Trade payables ERER 139,936 185,280 = -
Accruals and EAEAK
other payables EAth FE 3R 106,406 99,803 10,928 9,512
246,342 285,083 10,928 9,512
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other AEBZENERREMENZK KB
payables approximate their fair values. BEHEAFEES -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables AEBZENERREMBENREHRZ
balances are denominated in the following currencies: IREERATE®.E -
Group Company
rEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007

$000Ft $000F7L $000F7T  $000FIT

Hong Kong dollars BT 60,381 81,022 10,928 9,512
Renminbi AREE 174,119 186,605 - -
US dollars ETT 10,469 15,257 - -
Other currencies Hup gk 1,373 2,199 =
246,342 285,083 10,928 9,512
ETESEXEZERERAT 99



Notes to the Financial Statements

W B & KR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBI - ABEEFTE)

18 Bank borrowings 18 RITHEX
Group
AEE
2008 2007
$’000F T $°000F 7T
Non-current IR B
Lomseeured o TRER 3185 5915
Current B
— secured —HIEH 30,416 39,279
- unsecured — KR - 4,000
S 30416 43279
Total 4z 33,601 49,194
Total borrowings include secured borrowings of BIE R aﬁ*ﬁﬁ?wﬁ 3} #4933,601,000
approximately HK$33,601,000 (2007: HK$45,194,000), B (ZZEZT 145,194,000 7T) °
which are secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant RTIE ?K BETAEEYE BER
and equipment (Note 6) and leasehold land and land use B (M sEe) R E i K L A i
rights (Note 8). (Ft3E8) BIEA -
At 31 March 2008, the Group’s borrowings were repayable RZBZENF=ZA=1+—H  A&EEZ
as follows: EREEANAT
Group
AEME
2008 2007
$°000F T $°000F T
Amounts repayable RIEZAR AT HRAER
— within one year ——FR 30,416 43,279
— within one to two years ——FE-FNR 2,730 2,730
— within two to five years ——FERFN 455 3,185
33,601 49,194
Bank borrowings bear interest rates ranging from WITERIRFENEL2.75EE7.47F
approximately 2.75% to 7.47% (2007: 3.83% to 6.40%) —ETTF :3.83EE6.40F )T E -
per annum.

100 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Bank borrowings (Continued)
The carrying amounts of both non-current and short-term

borrowings approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated
in the following currencies:

18

(BR=EHBI - ABEFTE)

|BITERE)

B E R R HME K R (EE
FEMEE -

ERZERERA TEEIIK

Group
AEH
2008 2007
$’000F 7T $'000F 7T
Hong Kong dollars BIT 5,915 12,645
US dollars ETT - 31,488
Renminbi AR 27,686 5,061
33,601 49,194
Deferred taxation 19 EEHIE
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences BELEHBERAEEEIRERERLRE
under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of EHEI7T5% (ZETLF  17.5%)FF
17.5% (2007: 17.5%). o

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income

EFSHEENBBEERTHEEE

HFITHIBRE

BIRR R B BITHER

BARE S KRS B[R] — RIS R

taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amount @R SO EMEEH - BESEN
are as follows: ™
Group
rEH
2008 2007
$’°000F T $’000F 7T
Deferred tax assets EEF IR E B 17 186
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEBE (1,135) (1,021)
(1,118) (835)
ErTSEXEZERERAA 101
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BE 85 3R B
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBI - ABEEFTE)

19 Deferred taxation (Continued)

19 BITHERE)

The movements in the deferred taxation are as follows: EEFIE 2 B 8AT -
Group
AEE
2008 2007
$°000F T $°000F 7T
At 1 April REA—H (835) (1,253)
Deferred taxation (charged)/credited Bz &RF (2 8), IR
to income statement (Note 27)  FiIE(Ki:t27) (283) 418
At 31 March HW=A=+—8H (1,118) (835)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry forwards to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The

Group has no unrecognised tax losses (2007: Nil).

The movements in deferred taxation (prior to offsetting of

EREREEERRARABRET
BR - WIARTRE B IR R ERDGE A 2 &
BRE AEEYEREITHBER
“EREFFTET) o

FARERE(ERF —BRME &

balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the AT 2 BT
year are as follows:
Accelerated
tax Fair value
depreciation gain Others Total
MEREHE AHEKRE Hitr st
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

$000Fx $000T7L $000F7w $000FT $000Fx $000T7L $000F7w $000T7T

At 1 April REUA—H (654)  (1,374) (197) (166) 16 287 (835)  (1,253)
(Charged)/credited to FMEZ R

income statement (Z38) /#0 (132) 720 (151) (31) - 271) (283) 418
At 31 March R=A=1+-B (786) (654) (348) (197) 16 6 (1,118) (835)

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”)
under which it could grant options to employees of the
Group (including executive directors of the Company) to
subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a maximum
of 10% of the nominal value of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time, excluding for this purpose
shares issued on the exercise of options granted under the
scheme. The subscription price was to be determined by
the Company’s board of directors, and would not be less
than the higher of the nominal value of the shares and 80%
of the average of the closing price of the shares quoted
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) on the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the options.

(BRBEHAIN - LLBEERE)
20 Share capital 20 A
2008 2007
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
g 4= EREE Rin & E REE
000K  $000F T '000F % $000F 7T
Authorised: ERE
— ordinary shares of —SREECI0ET
HK$0.10 each ZEER 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAREA
— ordinary shares of —BREE0.10% T
HK$0.10 each 2 Bk
Beginning of the year F1 377,323 37,732 375,018 37,502
Exercise of share options FRTT0IE R E
during the year 3,866 387 2,305 230
End of the year FR 381,189 38,119 377,323 37,732
21 Share options 21 BRE

ApmRBBRESS(TESE])
B ARRAAAKERE(BER
REAPTER)RHBREARBAR
Ay - BB TR BBARRTED
BITIRAEE10% (HERFHRIEZ AT &
ROBRERETEMEHTZRM) -
REERARREFSE U TEK
Rt 2 EE MR LB RE B B A E
RHAEBBBARSMBR AR ([H
R ) PR 2 SF T B 280% A M
E2RSERE -

ot
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBI - ABEEFTE)

21 Share options (Continued)

Following the amendment of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange, during the year ended
31 March 2003, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) to replace the Old Scheme.
However, all options granted prior to the adoption of the
New Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance
with the terms of the Old Scheme. Under the New Scheme,
the Company may grant options to any eligible employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive
director), any non-executive director, any shareholder, any
supplier and any customer of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest, and any other party having
contributed to the development of the Group to subscribe
for shares in the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of
the nominal value of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time.

The subscription price will be determined by the Company’s
board of directors, and will not be less than the highest
of:

(@) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21 Share options (Continued)

Movements of share options during the year ended

(BR=EHBI - ABEFTE)

21 BRE L)
BE-_TT)\E-A-+—ALEEY

31 March 2008 were: BREZESNT
Lapsed as a
Beginning Granted Exercised result of
Exercise period Subscription of the during during  termination of End of
Date of grant  (dd/mm/yyyy) price year the year the year employment the year
RERM
RitBH i B &4 R Emfie  MEBRE EX
HKS/& 7T 000 & 000F & 000F & '000T & '000T &
Old Scheme Brta
02/05/2000 02/05/2000-01/05/2010 1.287 18,000 - - - 18,000
02/05/2001-01/05/2010 1.287 (Note 1) (Fiti) 605 - (480) - 125
02/05/2002-01/05/2010 1287 (Note i) (ki) 460 - (460) - -
19,065 - (%0) - 18,125
New Scheme Hiat &
02/06/2003 02/12/2008-01/06/2013 150 (Note ) (A7) 248 - (248) - -
02/06/2004-01/06/2013 150 (Note i) (A1) 248 - (248) . -
496 - (496) - -
03/05/2004 03/05/2005-02/05/2014 1.00 (Note i) (A1) 6,280 - (830) - 5,450
(3/05/2006-02/05/2014 1.00 Note i) (Fri) 6,650 - (1,200) - 5,450
12,930 - (2,030) - 10,900
31/05/2004 03/05/2005-02/05/2014 100 (Nota i) (A1) 200 - (200) - -
03/05/2006-02/05/2014 1.00 (Note i) (A1) 200 - (200) - -
400 - (400) - _
22/05/2007 22/05/2008-21/05/2017 198 ote 1) (Hizi) - 12,200 - (300) 1,900
22/05/2009-21/05/2017 198 Note 1) (#7i) - 700 - (300) 400
- 12,900 - (600) 12,300
Notes: /fﬁ ’?I,‘— .

(0

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The options were subject to a vesting period of six months
from the date of grant.

The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from
the date of grant.

The options were subject to a vesting period of two years
from the date of grant.

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the weighted average
closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on
which the options were exercised was HK$2.7.

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

ZEBREARRLAHES 2+ F
5 BT

ZEBREARRLAHES 2 —F
5 BT

ZEBREARRLAHES 2ME
5B TR

HE_ZZENF=ZA=Z+—-RHItHF
B BROREBEBRETELANZ
YT ER2. 7T

ETSEXERERLT
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W B & KR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBI - ABEEFTE)

21 Share options (Continued) 21 BREE)
(v)  The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated (v) ARABROREEBEBRERLEBA
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet immediately R e A RERY 2 W E
before the dates on which the options were granted were as ™
follows:

Closing price per share immediately

Date of grant before the date of grant (HK$)

& AH EERLEAAZERBTE(ET)

2 May 2000 —ZTTETFHAC-AH 1.72

2 June 2003 ZEZE=FAZH 1.49

3 May 2004 —ZTENFRA=AH 0.89

31 May 2004 —ZEENFRA=1+—H 0.99

22 May 2007 T+ FRAZ+=H 1.95
(vi) At 31 March 2008, outstanding options of 29,025,000 were v RZEENF=ZRA=Z+—H"

exercisable. 29,025,000/ 7 B A T1T {2 -
(viij Options exercised during the year were issued at the (i) FRNBITE 2 BREDERYEREE

corresponding subscription price. BT -
Options to subscribe for 12,900,000 shares were granted REBEFE  BIRHMeralRtBrERE
under the New Scheme during the year under review. 12,900,000 2 B B # - B3 — 1B X
According to the Binomial Model, the fair value of the R FRARHEBERE ATFEGRZ
options granted in the year measured as at the date of grant ZELFRAAZT_HRBAESFE)
of 22 May 2007 was approximately HK$0.58 and HK$0.59 2 5l %) &3 1%0.58% 7T & 0.597% 7T
per share, respectively, taking into account various factors, WEZEEUNTHEZE  #HREH :

variables and assumptions which include the following:

()  exercise multiple was applied to the historical information () HUATEHEBRERSBEAZFEHITE
of the option holders, on average, would exercise their BER  BREEAEENREE
options when the stock price is 176% of the exercise BT EZ2176% M 1T
price;

(i) the risk-free interest rate used was 4.88%, being the (i AIEFHE 2 &R BT X B4.88
yields of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority Exchange B rBRELABERAZESS
Fund Notes quoted at the date of grant; RERBINEEASESAHRE X

(i) the expected volatility was about 31.46%; and (i) TEHARRERBI XA A31.46% : &

(iv) The expected annual dividend yield of HK8.0 cents per (iv) BEtEBFREKEEAERS.0E
share. fily

The total expense recognised in the Group’s income FNc EE Ei12,700,00017 88 i

statement for the year in respect of the grant of the aforesaid EMERARAEBESET 2RI T A

12,700,000 options is HK$5,828,000. 5,828,000/ 7t °

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited



Notes to the Financial Statements

WE B i & K

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHBI - ABEFTE)

22 Other reserves 22 Hthf#E
Group
34
Property Share
Share  revaluation Capital ~ Statutory  Investment option  Exchange
premium reserve  reserve (a)  reserve (b) reserve reserve reserve Total
NEEfE BARE  iRRG ERR

Rt i (a) b)  REEH i EARR aE
§00Tr  $000fr  §o00FTm  So0fr  $ooFm  $000Tr  $000Tm  $000TR

At 1 April 2006 RZEEAERA-A 56,187 2,108 1,59 - (391) 4716 3,033 67,847
Currency tranglation EHEE
differences - - - - - - 3,588 3,588
Changes in far value e
of avallable-for-sale HEERL
finencil asses LTERY - - - - 241 - - 241
Employee share option [EEERE
scheme; BEE
- value of employee senices  —EEREZEE - - - - - 177 - 177
- proceeds fiom shares -friERE
issuied Upon exercise k3o
of share opfions LR 2,356 - - - - - - 2,36
-evercise of shareoptions~ —{TEBRE 604 - - - - 604) - -
At 31 March 2007 RZBBLEZR=+-A 59147 2,108 1,594 - (150) 4,289 7,22 74,209
Appropriate of EEREAR
statutory reserve - - - 6,999 - - - 6,999
Currency translation EREE
differences - - - - - - 37,095 31,095
Release of reserve upon HETRNE
disposal of avaleble-for-sale  HIHEEEL
finencial asses BElR#R - - - - 150 - - 150
Employes share option [EEERE
scheme; EEE
- value of employee senices  —ESREEE - - - - - 5,884 - 5,384
- proceeds from shares -fifERE
issued Upon exercise kGl
of share options PR 3,997 - - - - - - 3,997
-exercise of share optons ~17E BT E 942 - - - - (049) - -
At 31 March 2008 R-EENE=R=1-H 64,086 2,108 1,594 6,999 - 9,231 44,316 128,334
ErTSEXEZERERAA
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W B & KR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBS - ABEFE

22 Other reserves (Continued)

22 HitfRE (&)

Company
b N
Share
Share  Contributed option
premium surplus (c) reserve Total
RAEE  BHEH(D) BRERE “iE
$000F T $000F T $000F7T $000F T
At 1 April 2006 R-EEXFNA-A 56,187 138,800 4,716 199,703
Employee share option scheme: EEBERERE -
- value of employee services —-EERBZEA - - 177 177
- proceeds from shares issued — (TR BB 1T
upon exercise of share options Bt 2 S 00E 2,356 - - 2,356
- exercise of share options — TR R 604 - (604) -
At 31 March 2007 R-ZBBLF=ZA=+-H 59,147 138,800 4,289 202,236
Employee share option scheme: EEBERERE -
- value of employee services —-EERBZEA - - 5,884 5,884
- proceeds from shares issued — (TR BB 1T
upon exercise of share options 10 2 g 308 3,997 - - 3,997
- exercise of share options — TR 942 - (942) -
At 31 March 2008 RZBENF=ZA=+t—-H 64,086 138,800 9,231 212,117

Notes:

(@) Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the share capital and share premium of
subsidiaries acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant
to the Group’s reorganisation in March 2000.

(b)  Statutory reserves represent general reserve fund required
to be set up pursuant to the laws of China for the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China. The general reserve fund can
only be used to make up losses incurred, increase registered
capital or used for collective welfare of employees.

(c) Contributed surplus represents the difference between the
nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by the Company
and the net asset value of a subsidiary acquired through an
exchange of shares pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation
in March 2000.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

ik

@) BAREEARFMETE AR ZEE
HRE - ETTF - AAEEEHETT
AR T U 2 BT B & R AR AR B R ) (B
M2 ZR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

WE B ik & KR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHBO - ABEFTE)

23 Revenue 23 WA

AEBFEEK AR  ®iE - -HER
HEEEER  KEGMEMOETERR
BHEYE FTRERZWALT :

The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacture,
marketing and trading of electro-acoustic products,
accessories and other electronic products and property
holding. Revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

2008 2007

$’000F 7T $'000F 7T

Sales of merchandise EmiHE 1,608,339 1,673,771
Rental income s N 469 434
Management fees (Note 36 (a)) BB (f1i136(a) 120 120
Handling income N 7,557 4,077
1,616,485 1,678,402

24 Hp(BE) WE - FE

24 Other (losses)/gains — net

2008 2007
$’°000F T $'000F 7T
Fair value losses on derivative TESRITE
financial instruments NEHEEE (3,416) (1,550)
Fair value gains on WEMEZ AN FE
investment properties e 860 180
Fair value (losses)/gains on BEAFE
financial assets at fair FTABEI IS
value through profit or loss BEZAFE (BB ks (1,482) 394
Net gains on disposal of property, HEME - HE KRG
plant and equipment 2 WEFEE 206 233
Net losses on disposal HERHEENBEE
of available-for-sale < BB
financial asset (149) 3)
Net gains on disposal of financial H&ERAFE A
assets at fair value BamMIBEE
through profit or loss 2 WEFEE 206 48
Net foreign exchange
(losses)/gains Y (BB /BFFE (17,571) 2,660
(21,346) 1,962

Hot
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Notes to the Financial Statements

WE B i & KR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBO - ABEEFE)

25 Operating profit 25 KR EF
Operating profit is stated after charging the following: KRN BB T SIE
2008 2007
$’000F T $'000F 7T
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREN N & 1,260 1,200
Amortisation of leasehold land FAE 4 b > s 562 725
Cost of inventories FEEA 910,978 960,803
Depreciation of property, LE =Y
plant and equipment ZHE 45,569 39,981
Provision for impairment FEWE TR B
of trade receivables 1,179 2,656
Operating lease rental of premises % 2 & &M & 7,013 6,989
Staff costs (including directors’ BETIER (BEESH2)
emoluments) (Note 31) (H1#£31) 267,705 250,302
26 Finance income and costs 26 EEWARKE
2008 2007
$’000F T $'000F 7T
Interest income from RET ZFEMA -
— available-for-sale — AL EMBEE
financial assets 26 180
— bank deposits —iRITER 7,921 2,953
- financial assets at fair value — R AYE
through profit or loss FFABRNIBEE 746 -
Finance income — Interest income B & A — Il B Uz A 8,693 3,133
Finance costs &R (3,050) (5,975)
Net finance income/(costs) BEUA (A F5E 5,643 (2,842)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B R & B GE

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

27 Income tax expenses

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
March 2016.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
17.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
arising in or derived from Hong Kong for the year. Taxation
on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

The Group’s sino-foreign equity joint venture and wholly
foreign owned enterprises established in Mainland China are
qualified as production enterprises established and operated
in Mainland China. They are exempted from corporate
income tax for two years starting from the first year of
profitable operations after offsetting prior years’ losses,
followed by a 50% reduction in enterprise income tax for
the next three years under the old Foreign Enterprise Income
Tax Law.

With the effective of the New Corporate Income Tax Law
(“CIT Law”) from 1 January 2008, the Group’s sino-foreign
equity joint venture and wholly foreign owned enterprises,
being recognised as “old foreign investment enterprises”
established prior to 16 March 2007, are able to continue
utilising their unexpired tax hoildays, if any, under the 5-year
grandfathering treatment. The general applicable Mainland
China corporate income tax rate under the New CIT Law
is 25%.

Accordingly, Fujikon Acoustics (Suzhou) Limited, Charter
Media (Dongguan) Company Limited, and Full-Sound
(Dongguan) Electrical Products Limited, with their tax
holidays expired, are subject to corporate income tax at a
rate of 25% in the year 2008. Profits (Dongguan) Electric
Products Company Limited, Ningbo Fusion Electrical Material
Company Limited and Dongguan Full Rich Precision Metal
Product Limited, which have unexpired tax holidays, are
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 12.5%.

(BR=BEHBI - ABEFE)

27 FiBHiEx

AARGEHBERERE HAEE-ZT—X
EF=RAIL -

EENSHBECRBEANRETBESE
LIREBBZEFTERBEFIA17.5%
TETLEFE AT5%) R RFE - F
A F) 2 FRIB B LA (5T B SR B R A
RALEBECEER 2 BARERFZHER

H o
It

ANEBMAFEBEANKYL Z PINEERE
TERIIEBECELFTEEFBEEN
BRI RBIEZ EEMEZEWR - A
RIBESINCEMBHRE TEZSE
EHESHNFFEBBETEEER
BERECEEFNFERRNFEREDEMN
BF - EHE=F  QESLCEMBH
50% R, °

ENHEEMSREIR _TENF—H
—HEEY  FRZFIIEELEDE
EOINEBECLEFHRBERASR_-F
THF=A+NERKILZIENEDR
X BURAFBEMERRA - #
BEERERAEMRIHER R (W0
B)  REHELEMSHE  RABER
W—RERZ EEMEHER25% -

At RZZEZNF AR ELTeEE
(BRM)BRAR - FHR(RE)ETH
RAFIREE(Rx)EREHBRAF
ZRIBEREEER - EERERE
5% WM EFBEHE - BE(RE)
BERUMERAR BEREEREEME
BRAFIEREEEREE LS EMER
RElZ M ARER  BREBREHRE
12. 5% MM EFTISTLE -

ot
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W B & KR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBI - ABHEFE)

27 Income tax expenses (Continued)

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income

statement represents:

27 FIEHAX (@)

R ABaRAMRHNRASEELRE

2008 2007
$’000F T $'000F 7T

Current taxation IR
- Hong Kong profits tax —BAENEN 19,668 24,109

— Mainland China enterprise — AEERER

income tax 7,496 9,959
— Over-provision in prior years — A EERERR (2,854) (30)
24,310 34,038

Deferred taxation PRIETIE
- Hong Kong profits tax —BAENER 283 (326)
— Over-provision in prior years — A FERERT - (92)
24,593 33,620

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
taxation rate of the home country of the Company as

follows:

A EE B BR B AR FI R 2 FTiS B BL %
ARBTEER B RFE 2 BwmeiE
ZERIWATE

2008 2007
$°000F T $'000F T
Profit before income tax PRS0 A% 175,886 208,972
Calculated at a taxation rate of BIEAT 5%
17.5% (2007: 17.5%) TTETLFE 17.5%) TE 30,780 36,570
Effect of different taxation rates ~ REMBERTRFHE 2
in other countries (3,347) 64
Income not subject to taxation BABF 2 WA (1,793) (8,216)
Expenses not deductible for SR HERRER i HIBR 2 I S2
taxation purpose 3,053 4,530
Utilisation of previously BB e AT AR SR 2 B TE B 18
unrecognised tax losses 283 -
Over-provision in prior years FEERBAT (2,854) (122)
Others EH (1,529) 794
Income tax expenses Fisfimx 24,593 33,620

Under the New CIT Law, corporate withholding income tax
will be levied on the foreign investors for dividend which arise
from profit of foreign investment enterprises earned after 1
January 2008, at tax rates ranging from 5% to 10%. This
change does not impact the Group’s financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

WE B ik & KR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of approximately HK$54,354,000 (2007:
HK$51,613,000).

Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

28

29

(BR=EHBO - ABEFTE)

RARREREAEGRF

4754,354,000% T( = & T £ F
51,613,000/ ) 2 A A RIREFE A
EEFETALRR R EIRE -

BERER

BX

SREA B TS A KA AR A AR
5 B DA PO B 7T AR 2 A0 T
I BE -

2008 2007
Profit attributable to equity holders ZAA GIR%AEREH A
of the Company (HK$’'000) EfaF (F57T) 138,226 159,487
Weighted average number of BEITE AR 2 I
ordinary shares in issue ('000) T8 (F) 380,594 376,234
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &FRREARZF] (GBl) 36.3 42 4

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assuming conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual
market price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

s

BEREERANDRERRMBETCHES
BaRCEem BTz @SR EN
BFOHETE - ARBA—RBREEEE
B BB - LEEAEmS - Y
RBEAITEBREMMNRBEEZER
EBEABECIRAFERBZRNEA
(AARRRBMD FHBFHEETE)ME
HEt®E - EXETEZBRMHBE BRKRE
PTG BT ZRMHBB RS -

ot
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W B & KR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBI - ABHEFE)

29 Earnings per share (Continued) 29 SRERN &)
2008 2007
Profit attributable to equity holders 7N RIRXHERH A
of the Company (HK$’000) EEEF (FA7T) 138,226 159,487
Weighted average number of BETEBRZ
ordinary shares in issue ('000) nwEFEHE (TR 380,594 376,234
Adjustment for potential dilutive i AR TT{F AIEE AL
effect in respect of outstanding BT ESE BE
share options ('000) 2 FA% (FRR) 21,898 12,466
Weighted average number of FEEREERT
ordinary shares used in RFER A 2 B hn e
calculating diluted earnings g (Fk)
per share ('000) 402,492 388,700
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) F M EEE E | (GB{L) 34.3 41.0
30 Dividends 30 KR
2008 2007
$’000F T $'000F 7T
Interim dividend of HK3.0 cents ~ HIAZ BFAR LR
(2007: HK3.0 cents) per % 3.07811L
ordinary share ZETAF - 3.08L) 11,435 11,292
Final dividend of HK5.0 cents R BB E B
(2007: HK5.0 cents) 1%5.0784
per ordinary share (ZZZ+F : 5.081) 19,959 18,956
Special interim dividend of R B BB B
HK2.0 cents (2007: Nil) f%2.07% 1L
per ordinary share ZEEEF  FTHEW) 7,624 -
Special final dividend of R R R B R BB A%
HK5.0 cents L imARs.07% L
(2007: HK4.0 cents) ZETEF 4.0
per ordinary share 19,959 15,165
58,977 45,413
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30 Dividends (Continued)

Notes to the

Financial Statements

WE B ik & KR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

At a meeting held on 3 July 2008, the directors proposed
a final dividend of HK5.0 cents and a special final dividend
of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share. The proposed dividends
are not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial

statements.

31 Employee benefit expense

(R =B AL -

30 RE (#)

R-ZEZNFELA=HRT]T

B E)

TR

E=FARNRAREEREBRS.0
AL R R B R B B B B A R B ARS.08
il - FRB BN EEZERHERRP T

ERMAE -

31 BERAXE

2008 2007

$’°000F T $'000F 7T

Wages and salaries TERES 234,361 225,371

Unutilised annual leave REBAFR 306 367

Other staff benefits HEMETEF 17,824 14,871
Pension costs — defined BREZH—FE8E

contribution plans (Note 34) HIRETE (M7E34) 9,330 9,516
Value of share options granted BYEEREEZ

to directors and employees BREERE (Wit21)
(Note 21) 5,884 177
267,705 250,302

Hot
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WE B i & KR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBO - ABEEFE)

31 Employee benefit expense (Continued) 31 EERAZH &)
(a) Directors’ and senior management emoluments (a) EERESREEEMS
Pension
costs and
Discretionary share
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses options Total
BHREZH
ESf? we ¢  BER4 RiERE ag

$o00Fx  $000Fr  $000Fm  $000FT  $'000FT

For the year ended 31 March 2008 EHZ-ZEE\F=A=1-RL%E

Executive Directors HIES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny i 200 1477 2,200 1,872 5,749
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon piiofs 200 1,435 2,200 1,864 5,699
Chow Man Yan, Michael [Ehem 200 1,435 2,200 1,872 5,707
Yuen Chi King, Wyman i 150 811 1,457 221 2,639
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben (Note ) BB (W) 100 547 971 14 1,632
Chow Lai Fung (Note i) RRE (M) 100 570 97 14 1,655
Ng Kwong Hing (Note i REE (Hti) - 6 - 2 8

Independent Non-Executive Directors By IFR{TES

Chang Chu Cheng Rk 200 - - - 200
Che Wai Hang, Allen BEE 200 - - - 200
Lee Yiu Pun TR 150 - - - 150

For the year ended 31 March 2007 BZ-ZFBtE=A=1+-HLLEE

Executive Directors $1ES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny Ry 200 1,164 1,875 47 3,286
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon Pk 200 1,128 1,875 47 3,250
Chow Man Yan, Michagl BXC 200 1,128 1,875 47 3,250
Yuen Chi King, Wyman T 9 436 797 11 1,336
Ng Kwong Hing (Note i RER (fysti) 200 794 1,407 28 2,429

Independent Non-Executive Directors B 811785

Chang Chu Cheng SRR 200 - - - 200

Che Wai Hang, Allen BRE 200 - - - 200

Lee Yiu Pun £S5 100 - - - 100
Note i: Appointed on 1 August 2007 A - K:g;ti}\ﬂ—ﬁ%?{f
Note i Resigned on 4 April 2007 Kfei=  R-FELFNAMNARE
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

31 Employee benefit expense (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals are directors whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group for the year (2007:
included 4 directors) whose emoluments are reflected

in the analysis presented above.

The emoluments payable to the remaining individual

for 2007 are as follows:

(BR=BEHBI - ABEFE)

31 EERAZH (&)

(b) EEBREHFAL

FAREERSHFLEALR(Z
ZTLF BI4REF)ES
BEzZMEE RN EREN Z
Bk

RZEZTLFREMNHT AT ZBH
&M

2007

$’000F 7T

Salary e 875

Discretionary bonus BIETEAL 673
Housing allowances, FEEER - BARE -

share option, other allowances Eofh)ERL
and benefits-in-kind REYEF 23
1,571

Hot
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W B & KR

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHBI - ABHEFE)

32 Notes to the consolidated cash flow 32 MERERERMTE

statement

(a) RBABFNEBLEZFTHZ2RER

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net

cash inflow generated from operations: AFHEZHER
2008 2007
$’000F T $'000F 7T

Profit for the year FEm T 151,293 175,352
Adjustments for: AT EEEL AR
- Income tax expenses — 5Bz 1 24,593 33,620
— Interest income —F B U A (8,693) (3,133)
— Interest expense —F B 3,050 5,975
- Depreciation (Note 6) — & (K:te) 45,569 39,981
— Amortisation of prepaid operating ~— B EHTET 4R &

lease payment (Note 8) MENRHEFS) 562 725
— Fair value gains on investment —REMEATFEY=E

properties (860) (180)
— Fair value losses/(gains) on —BAFEFAER

financial assets at fair value W IEEERNTFAE

through profit or loss &8, (W) 1,482 (394)
— Fair value losses from derivative ~ —$TE &R T AN EFE

financial instruments 3,416 1,550
— Provision for impairment of — A EMBEE

available-for-sale AR

financial assets - 390
- Net gains on disposal of —HEWE  BER&E

property, plant and equipment 2 W FER (206) (233)
- Net losses on disposal of —HEHHEVHEEE

available-for-sale E5i8 58

financial assets 149 3
— Net gains on disposal of —HERAFERT ABE

other financial assets at fair W EMI B EE

value through profit or loss 2 W T (206) (48)
— Share option expenses —ERERY 5,884 177

226,033 253,785

Changes in working capital: BEBGWE
— Inventories —FE 57,367 (9,806)
— Trade receivables — R E R 62,356 (52,487)
— Other receivables — H b FEUGRIA 5,014 (10,191)
— Trade payables —EIER (45,344) (7,885)
— Accruals and other payables — BT R E A A 3R IE 6,603 31,963
Cash generated from operations KEEHEA RS 312,029 205,379

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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32 KERERERHFT (&)

B E)

(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the (b) FARMEZE D :
year:
Share capital and
share premium Bank loans
BRAR R EE BITER
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000F $000F 7T $°000F 7t $000F 7T
At 1 April RMUA—A 96,879 93,689 49,194 61,298
Issue of shares upon RITEREREM 21Tk
exercise of share options 4,384 2,586 - -
New bank loans HERITER - - 26,096 260,612
Repayment of bank loans BEETER - - (44,423) (274,299)
Exchange differences B =R - - 2,734 1,583
Employee share option scheme: & B BEMtHEA I -
- value of employee services —EERBEE 942 604 - -
At 31 March W=A=1+-H 102,205 96,879 33,601 49,194
33 Commitments 33 &iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAREE

The Group had the following authorised and contracted

AEEZEEERD K E AKX

capital commitments: EWT

2008 2007
$’000F T $'000F 7T

Acquisition of machinery FEE e B8
and equipment 1,061 4,146

Construction of factory BEREE
premises - 236
1,061 4,382
ELSBERRERLT
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33 Commitments (Continued) 33 HiEE)
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) &L EIE
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease REBERBEZENABER 2 LZ
payments under various non-cancellable operating HMAORKRENZEHSBBDN
leases as follows: T
2008 2007
$°000F T $000F T
Not later than one year R —F 3,391 5,574
Later than one year and HiE—F
not later than five years BrEBARF 2,792 4,373
6,183 9,947
34 Pension obligations 34 RRKEEME
The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join REBZHEREREELEB —BEBILE
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), FEABRE Z EREZESMEAESFE
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent (lBE2E D) RevBEEHRASE
trustee. The assets of the fund are held separately from BEMEESHIFEE  UHEBLEEHR
those of the Group and are managed by independent THEBER - RIFBRESHE  A%H
professional fund managers. Under the MPF Scheme, each REFMBREREBENAESEMMER Z
of the Group and its employees make monthly contributions EEFHF5%T AELHR - BERE
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined B#Rz ERH AT A1,0008 7T - IF
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the A B REEEIME R -
employer’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to
a cap of HK$1,000 per month and thereafter contributions
are voluntary.
During the year ended 31 March 2008, the aggregate amount HE_ZTTNF=-A=+T—HILEFE "
of the Group’s employer contributions to the MPF Scheme AEBEHBRBESTEEFL cEBEHK
was approximately HK$1,389,000 (2007: HK$1,551,000). A H 491,389,000 L ( Z 2T £ F ¢

1,551,000/ 7T) °

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in Mainland RIBRBHEANEREERBTE  AEEH
China, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement BHEHF WIEE MR BIRE B 2 RIK
plans for its employees in Mainland China. The employees FTEMEHR M - REAREELST ©&
contribute up to 22% of their basic salaries, while the Group Z22% B R - MASE B RIZE MR K
contributes to retirement plans approximately 10% to 22% FrEEHEFEEERELRH S H10%
of the basic salaries of its employees in Mainland China, BEB20% 2 MEEBEMERR
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of RE 2 H R IRAE ) Bl 88 Z8 1 1 A frl
pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-sponsored - RKEBZABRARSZ HBEA
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension REY 2 RIRGTEERYE - T - R EHE
obligations payable to retired employees. During the year, N2 B A BIRIBEZRARSFEIEANA
approximately HK$7,941,000 (2007: HK$7,965,000) was JE 497,941,000 L ( Z 2T £ F ¢
paid/payable by Mainland China subsidiaries with respect 7,965,000/ 7T ) ©

to such retirement plans.
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35 Financial guarantee 35 MEER
At 31 March 2008, the Company had provided guarantees in RZZFEENF=A=+—H ' £2F
respect of banking facilities of its subsidiaries amounting to BEMBARIRIT BREELER -
approximately HK$435,181,000 (2007: HK$260,660,000). 4 %8 49435,181,000% T( = T T +
The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries at 31 March 2008 £ : 260,660,000 7T ) - M@ A @R
amounted to HK$33,601,000 (2007: HK$56,299,000). ZEENF=A=T—HEHAZH

& /533,601,000 o( — T E + F -
56,299,000/ 7T ) °

36 Related party transactions 36 BEALRS
The ultimate parent of the Group is Acoustic Touch Limited Acoustic Touch Limited (REBE K
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands). BHEaAMAXIL)AEAEE 2 &KER
E_J o
(a) The following significant transactions were carried out (a) FEEFEHBPEALTZEARZN
with related parties: T~

Name of related party/ BEALZERB 2008 2007
nature of transaction REME $’000F 7T $000F 7T

The Bright Printing Press and St R = BN A R

Paper Products Limited (i) BRAF)

— Purchases of merchandise —MAEEBEEER

from the Group 14,292 14,452
— Sales of merchandise —RAREHEEER

to the Group 4,004 7,319
— Motor vehicle expenses —AEEBNZAERY

paid by the Group 60 190
- Rental expense paid/payable —AEEE BftzHE

to the Group 38 38
First Success Technology HEREER AT

Limited (i)
— Rental expense paid/payable —AEEZ AfRNES

by the Group 619 512
— Management fees earned —AREBHR EEER

by the Group 120 120

ot

TEREZERERAA 121
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36 Related party transactions (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

The following significant transactions were carried out
with related parties: (Continued)

Notes

(i) The Bright Printing Press and Paper Products Limited is
3% owned by an unrelated party. The remaining 97 % is
beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr.
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael,
directors of the Company.

(i) First Success Technology Limited is beneficially owned
by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai,
Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, directors of
the Company.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the above
related party transactions were conducted in the usual
course of business of the Group and in accordance
with terms mutually agreed by the respective parties.

Key management compensation

Key management personnel are the Company’s
executive directors. Details of compensation of key
management personnel are disclosed in Note 31 to
the financial statements.

At 31 March 2008, certain minority shareholders of
subsidiaries had provided their pro-rated share of
guarantees of approximately HK$2,898,000 (2007:
HK$12,904,000) to certain banks to secure the banking
facilities of those subsidiaries of the Group.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

36 MEALRZ (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

AEFBRBBEALZEAR SN
T (&)

Wit -

) XAFNKXENBHEBBERQFH
EREAN T AI%BME - K
TR ERARBEEHEMRS

ERMABEERBEXCELEER

MR e

(i) HEERNEERARBAARARES
BEELEE - BRMALEEREX
CEREERER -

ARRESERE FHl@EEAL
RGN AER —REKH#E
17 WIREF T ZIEFETT ©

TEEEESTM
TEEBEABRARANTE
E-IREBABZFMFERY
AP FEST

RZEENF=ZA=+—H" K
J*‘DJ FLHEBRREEME TIE
TIRE RS 2 RO 5 R D -
1% 492,898,000/ T( = T T +
4 12,904,000/ 70) © KA R
EMZEWNB AR ZIRITRE -
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